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HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Good nor ni ng and
wel come. This is a contested case hearing
conducted by the Illinois Pollution Control Board,
Case No. 96-125 entitled Col or Conmuni cati ons,

I ncorporated vs. The Illinois Environnenta
Protection Agency. The instant proceeding is in
the nature of a permt appeal

My name is June Edvenson. | amthe
hearing officer for this case. | wll now request
that counsel for the parties enter their
appearances for the record.

MR O BRIEN. For petitioner Kevin O Brien and
James Rubi n.

MR LAYMAN: For respondent Robb Laynman and
Bonni e Sawyer.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Thank you. Have
counsel for the parties filed their appearances
with the board in witing?

MR, O BRIEN: Yes.

M5. SAWER: Yes.

MR LAYMAN: Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Okay. Now |I'd Iike
to ask any other representatives of the parties or

the parties that are in attendance to identify
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thenselves for the record if they wish to do so

MR GORVAN.  Tom Gorman from Col or
Cormmuni cat i ons.

MR. NI CHOLAS: Ceorge Nicholas from G N chol as
& Associ at es.

MR ROVAINE: Chris Romaine fromthe Illinois
Envi ronment al Protection Agency.

MR PATEL: Mnish Patel fromlllinois
Envi ronment al Protection Agency.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Al right. Thank
you.

Are there any prelimnary notions or
stipul ati ons?

MR OBRIEN. Yes. W have a joint stipulation
of fact that has been agreed to by the respondent
and the petitioner.

There are 12 paragraphs of stipulations
that have been agreed to that we will enter as
joint stipulations of fact for this case.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Al l right. And |
will take a copy of that for the record. Has this
been filed with the clerk of the board today, or is
this being introduced --

MR OBRIEN. No, it has not as of yet.

McCORKLE COURT REPORTI NG, | NC.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  All right. Wre you
pl anning on making it a filing with the board, or
shall we just enter it in the record of the
heari ng?

MR OBRIEN:. | will just enter it in the
record if that's acceptable to counsel

MR LAYMAN: That's fine.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: That's fi ne.

W will nowturn to the order of the
hearing. Would either party |ike to nake an
openi ng statenent?

MR OBRIEN. | have a brief one.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Proceed.

MR O BRIEN. Do you prefer standing up or
sitting down?

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  You can sit.

MR OBRIEN. ['Il sit.

Thank you, again. |'mKevin OBrien. [|'m
one of the attorneys for the petitioner Color
Communi cat i ons.

As we all knowthis is a permt appea
taken froma notice of inconpleteness issued by the
[1linois EPA for Color Communications' Clean Air

Act Permt.

McCORKLE COURT REPORTI NG, | NC.
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The notice of inconpleteness was issued
on Novenber 2, 1995; and the issue raised by this
hearing in our mnd is the agency's determ nation
that the two Col or Conmunications' facilities in
Chi cago constitute one single source for purposes
of air permtting.

Just to give sonme background which | think
i s inmportant about Col or Conmmunications so you
understand the context, Col or Communi cations, or
CCl as we also refer toit, is headquartered in
Chicago and has two facilities here, as |
nmentioned. They also have facilities in Ireland,
New Zeal and, Mexico and New York State.

Again, it's the two Chicago facilities
that are at issue here; and they are |ocated at
4000 West Filnore and 4242 West Fil nore.

Now, today we are going to present
testinony that describes how CCl operates these
facilities and what goes on there; and you wl |
hear that at the 4242 facility CC conducts what
it calls a color matching operation in which it
mat ches, m xes and wei ghs various bases, |acquers,
colorants, to match the specifications of their

custoners. They are trying to get the col or
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right.

Sone of these colors are then put on a
substrate, coated to a substrate; and the result
is what we call a web or a sheet with col or coated
toit.

These sheets are either rolled up into
rolls or cut into sheets, and they are sent to a
variety of places.

Most of the material goes to the 4000 West
Filnmore facility. Some of it goes to the plants in
Irel and and New Zeal and.

Now, at the 4000 facility a different
function is performed. What the 4000 facility does
is that it assenbles and prints what are known as
col or boards; and M. Gorman will explain to you
what a color board is, but you've probably already
seen one if you've ever shopped for a new car or
tried to get a paint job for your house.

It's a brochure. You open it up. It wll
have squares or small sanples of paint with
different colors on it sometines referred to as
pai nt chi ps.

What CCl does at the 4000 facility is that

it prints those brochures, cuts and assenbl es the
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pai nt chips using the web that they produce at 4242
West Filnore and then put the finished product
together, they store it, they ship it out and they
deliver it to their custoners

So that is basically the process that
happens at the two facilities in Chicago.

You will also hear testinony that some of
this work is also done at CCl's other facilities
that | previously mentioned.

So that's the background on CC

And the issue here, as | mentioned, is
whet her the two Chicago facilities constitute one
source for air permtting purposes.

And what we are dealing with is a
definition of "source," you know, found in the
regul ations that really has three conponents as we
see it; and |'mjust reading from Section 211.61. 30
of 35 Illinois Adm nistrative Code which is "Source
means any stationary source or any group of
stationary sources that are | ocated on one or nore
contiguous or adjacent properties and are under
common control of the same person or persons under
common control belonging to a single major

i ndustrial grouping."
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So fromour point of viewthere are at
| east three factors that go into determ ning
whet her you have a source

One is whether they are | ocated on one or
nore contiguous or adjacent properties; two is
whet her they are under common control of the same
person; and three is whether they belong to a
singl e major industrial grouping.

Now, it's not disputed here that the two
facilities are under comon control of the sane
person. The dispute cones with regard to the two
other factors.

The first is the single major industria
groupi ng.

Under the regulation it states that for
the purpose of defining source a stationary source
or group of stationary sources shall be considered
part of a single industrial grouping if all of the
pol lutant emtting activity at such source or group
of sources on contiguous or adjacent property
belong to the same najor group, i.e. all have the
sane two-digit code, as described in the standard
industrial classification manual 1987.

We've plead and we will testify today that

McCORKLE COURT REPORTI NG, | NC.
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the two facilities have different SIC codes which
befits the different functions that they perform

The 4242 Filnore facility has a
designation that is for paper coating, and the 4000
facility has a designation for comrercial printing.

The two plants not only do different
thi ngs, but they do not belong to the sanme mgj or
group. Their classifications do not have the same
two-digit prefix.

So under the regulation the two facilities
don't neet the criteria that's set out in the
regul ati on.

Now, the agency has argued and | believe
will argue again today that the 4242 Filnore
facility constitutes a support facility; and under
sone proposed rules that | think of the USEPA a
support facility can be considered part of the sane
sour ce.

Even if that's illegally binding, and that
| think is a question of law, the third factor
that's involved here is another area where we fee
these facilities don't qualify as one source; and
that's whether they are on contiguous or adjacent

properti es.

10
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M. CGorman will explain and he will show
you on this photo that these facilities are not on
conti guous or adjacent properties.

There is a separate conpany, an
i nterveni ng conpany, that takes up the entire city
bl ock of the 4100 bl ock of Wst Filnore; and you
will hear that the Col or Conmuni cati ons peopl e have
no access and don't use that facility and pretty
much are like any other two buildings in the city,
if you want to get fromone another you got to use
the city street.

And we maintain that under the definition
and under the way that the agency has treated this
definition that these are not contiguous or
adj acent properties.

And, again, you will hear testinony that
wi || describe how the functions occur on a
day-to-day basis.

These facilities have al ways been
separately treated for environnental permts
whether it be waste handling or air handling or air
permts or what have you

By | unping themtogether in this way what

happens is that it inposes the standards of a mgjor

11
McCORKLE COURT REPORTI NG, | NC.
CH CAGO, ILLINOS - (312) 263-0052



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

source on both buil dings.

Now, you will hear testinmony from M.

N chol as about the emi ssions that cone from both
bui l di ngs; and not only are the functions of the
buil dings different, but the amount of em ssions
are radically different.

The 4242 facility, the coating facility,
is a mpjor stationary source however you slice it,
what ever is added to it.

That buil di ng standi ng al one emts enough
volatile organic material that it's always going to
be considered a major stationary source.

The 4000 plant is a nmuch different
animal. It is a printing press and a printing and
assenbling facility, and it has very | ow eni ssions.
It would not qualify as a nmajor stationary source
wher e consi dered separately.

What it does to conbine the two sources is
to inpose the requirenents of a major stationary
source on the 4000 facility as well; and M.

Ni cholas will explain howthat is a real problem
for operations and a real problemfor nmanagenent
and devel opment of the 4000 facility, and one that

we think is not justified by the regul ations.

12
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Just to sumup, it's our position that the
agency's position in this case indicated in its
noti ce of inconpleteness that the two facilities
are actually one source is inconsistent with the
state regul ati ons and should be overturned by the
PCB. Thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Thank you, M.
O Brien
M. Layman?
MR LAYMAN. Thank you

For the record, the Illinois Environnental
Protection Agency as responded in this cause
believe that the testinmony nentioned today fromthe
wi t nesses as well as the evidence contained in the
adm nistrative record will support the agency's
noti ce of inconpleteness of Novenber 2, 1995.

The agency's notice of inconpleteness has
been appeal ed by the petitioner Color
Comuni cations pursuant to Section 40.2 of the
Envi ronmental Protection Act. Petitioner bears the
burden of proof in this matter

As will be shown fromthe adninistrative
record, the agency issued a notice of

i nconpl et eness to Col or Comuni cati ons because of

13
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its failure to submt a single CAAPP permt
application covering all em ssion units at the
sour ce.

The agency believes that nost of the
rel evant facts presented in its case, as M.

O Brien suggested in his opening statenent, are not
i n dispute.

Rat her the issues presented to the board
for consideration are predom nantly legal in nature
and revol ve around the relevant statutory and
regul atory definitions of "source."

These issues to the extent that they are
touched upon today in hearing will subsequently
raise a legal argument or issue the first
i npression to the board.

It occurs at a tine when Illinois like
many other states are just beginning to inplenent
their own approved Title 5 permt program pursuant
to the provisions of the dean Air Act.

The inplication of the board' s ruling
will, therefore, directly affect a threshold set of
criteria for CAAPP purposes.

The issues addressed in this case, of

course, are inportant to the parties to this

14
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proceedi ng; but they may al so assune a | arger
significance for the Illinois codified program and
the regul ated conmmunity.

The agency is confident that both the
evi dence and the relevant law will support its
determination that the petitioner's operations at
the 4242 West Filnore Street and 4000 West Fil nore
Street facilities today constitute a single
stationary source

Petitioner's submttal of separate CAAPP
permts for each of the locations should,
therefore, not be deened conplete for purposes of
the agency's continued CAAPP application review

The agency will present the testinony of
its own technical expert for new source review and
other permitting issues in Illinois for the purpose
of providing some insight into the agency's basis
for the notice of inconpleteness.

The agency will al so offer supporting
testinony froma national expert on air permtting
progranms and procedures fromthe United States
Envi ronmental Protection Agency of Region 5.

Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Thank you.

15
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At this point let us proceed with the
petitioner's case-in-chief, and why don't you cal
your first w tness.

MR O BRIEN. W call Thomas Gornan.
HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: M. Gorman, woul d
you pl ease be sworn
THOVAS M GORVAN,
called as a witness herein, having been first duly
sworn, was exami ned and testified as foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR O BRI EN:

Q Coul d you state your nane for the record,
pl ease?

A Thomas M chael Gorman.

Q M. Gornman, are you enpl oyed?

A Yes, | am

Q And where are you enpl oyed?

A At Col or Conmuni cati ons, | ncorporated.

Q How | ong have you been enpl oyed at Col or

Comuni cati ons, | ncorporated?
A Since July of 1991.
Q If | refer to Color Conmunications,
I ncorporated as CCl, will you understand that's

what |'mtalking about?

16
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A Sur e.

Q VWhat was your position at CCl when you
were first hired?

A I was hired as the director of |oss
prevention and safety.

Q And what were your responsibilities in
that position?

A I was responsible for the corporate
security for all the facilities and also the safety
and OSHA conpli ance

Q Now, have your responsibilities at Col or
Comuni cations stayed the sane since you were hired
in 19917

A No, they have not.

Q How have t hey changed?

A In January of 1994 | assuned the
responsibility for overseeing the conmpany's
environmental affairs for permtting, waste
handl i ng, reporting, et cetera.

Q Now, does that responsibility include
overseeing the pernmt that's at issue in this case,
the Clean Air Act Permt?

A Yes, it does.

Q M. Gorman, will you tell us what the

17
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business of CCO is?
A Col or Communi cati ons produces col or
systens, col or sanpl es, color boards and marketing
col or systens for paint, autonotive and ot her
i ndustri es.
Q Now, you've brought sonme exanples with you
today; and 1'd like to mark the first one w th what
the court reporter has given to nme as Petitioner's
No. 1.
(Wher eupon, Petitioner's
Exhi bit No. 1 was narked for
identification.)

BY MR O BRI EN

Q If you could describe for us what that is,
Petitioner's No. 1?

A This is an exanple of a color board that
we produce. You see it in paint hardware stores
and what not .

W do the printing of these boards, the
coating of the material and sonetines we even
design the layout for the customer. Everything is
coated, nounted, cut, assenbled and then shipped to
t he customer.

Q If you would Iike to pass that on

18
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somebody may want to take a ook at it.

Now, you al so nmentioned col or marketing
tools or devices. Do you have an exanple of that
with you?

A We do col or marketing systens for paint
and autonotive conpani es that produce, you know,
colors for all the car conpani es, produce colors

for all the paint conpanies and --

Q Before you continue let ne --
A I'"msorry.
Q -- mark this next as Petitioner's No. 2

and ask you to describe that for the record.
(Wher eupon, Petitioner's
Exhi bit No. 2 was narked for
identification.)

THE WTNESS: This is nore of a marketing
systemthat was produced for a conpany. W will
put together all the different colors that that
conpany manufactures, either for paint or
aut onotive customers, and market themas a tota
overall system and they use this in both body
shops, autonotive deal ers, they may use themin

stores as well.
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BY MR O BRI EN
Q Is there any nane for the type of
marketing tool that we've narked as Petitioner's
No. 27
A This particular one is a conplete system
It's called a fan deck, and you can fan it out and
see all the colors at once.
MR. O BRIEN. And, again, anyone who would like
to take a look at that is welcome to it.
HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: |s there any
objection to the introduction of Petitioner's
Exhibits 1 and 2 into evidence?
MR LAYMAN: No, there is not.
HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Al l right. Thank
you.
(Wher eupon, docunents so offered
were received in evidence as
Petitioner's Exhibit Nos. 1 and
2.)

BY MR O BRI EN

Q Now, M. Gornman, you mentioned that there
-- well, strike that.

Wiere are CC's manufacturing facilities

| ocat ed?

20
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A We have two facilities in Chicago; and
also a facility in Castlereagh, Ireland; a facility
i n Auckl and, New Zeal and; a facility in Mexico; and
two facilities one in Buffal o, New York and anot her
i n Poughkeepsi e, New York.
Q Ckay. First at the Chicago facilities
what are the addresses of the two Chi cago
facilities?
A W have one building at 4000 West Fil nore
Street and another facility at 4242 West Filnore
Street.
Q Wiere are CCl's corporate offices |ocated?
A At the 4000 West Fil nore buil ding.
Q Now, how | ong has CCl operated these two
facilities?
A At 4242 \West Filnore since approxi mately
1979 and at 4000 since approximately 1990.
(Wher eupon, Petitioner's
Exhi bit No. 3 was narked for
identification.)

BY MR O BRI EN

Q M. Gorman, 1'd like to direct your
attention to this photo that we have over on the

wal | here which we've now nmarked as Petitioner's

21
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No. 3.

MR. O BRIEN: Can everyone see this?

MR. LAYMAN:  Unh- huh
BY MR O BRI EN

Q Let me ask you first if you recognize this
phot ogr aph.

A Yes, | do.

Q And how do you recogni ze this photograph?

A W received this fromthe Gty of
Chi cago' s Departnent of Planning & Devel opnent.

Q And what is the date of this photo?

A Spring 1994.

Q Was a copy of this photo attached to the
permt appeal as Exhibit B?

A Yes, it was.

Q Now, if you would, if you could show us on
Petitioner's Exhibit 3, if you would point out and
describe for us the location of the two CCl Chicago
facilities.

A The 4000 West Filnore building is here.

It occupies the city block right there, and there
is a parking facility right across the street to
t he sout h.

Q What are the streets that surround the

22
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4000 West Filnore facility?

A This is Pul aski over here and Karlov over
here.

Q And to the south?

A To the south is Filnore.

Q And is the 4000 West Filnore building
desi gnated on Petitioner's 3 by a white label with
the words "4000 West Filnmore" witten on it?

A Yes, it is.

Q Coul d you locate for us or point out to us
the location of the other facility?

A This is 4242 Wst Filnore. The building
is not quite a block, and the parking area is just
to the east of the buil ding.

Q Agai n, what streets surround the 4242
bui | di ng?

A Kildare on the west and Keeler on the
east, and Filnore on the front on the south side.

Q Now, does this photo accurately reflect
the location of the two CCl facilities as of spring
1994 when it was taken?

A Yes, it does.

Q Have t here been any changes in the

| ocation of CCl Chicago facilities since spring

23
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19947
A No.
MR O BRI EN: l'd like to nove Petitioner's

Exhibit 3 into evidence.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Is there any
obj ection?

MR LAYMAN:  No

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Thank you.

(Wher eupon, docunent so offered
was received in evidence as
Petitioner's Exhibit No. 3.)

BY MR O BRI EN

Q Now, again, referring to the photo,

M. Gorman, what is located directly to the west of
the 4000 West Filnore Street facility?

A In between the two buildings is a conpany
at 4100 West Filnore that's called the Ri bbon
Webbi ng Corporation, and their buildings occupy
nost of the block. They have a receiving area over
here, and then their parking lot is on the south of
Fil more there.

Q Is the parking lot for the R bbon Webbi ng
Corporation fenced in?

A Yes.
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Q Do CCl enpl oyees or representatives have
any access to that parking |ot?

A No.

Q Do CCl enpl oyees or representatives have
any access to the R bbon Webbi ng buil di ng?

A No.

Q If a CC enployee has to go fromthe 4000
facility to the 4242 facility or vice versa, how do
they get there?

A W have security people that are outside
at both buildings in vehicles, and what they wl|
do is they will pick up people at each buil ding.

They will transfer them down to the other
bui I ding and al so take production materials,
paperwork, things of that nature regarding the jobs
back and forth between the buil dings.

Q Does CCI have any ownership interest in
t he Ri bbon Webbi ng Conpany?

A No.

Q Does the conpany have any interest in the

property where that facility sits?

A No.
Q Now, you've |located the facilities for us
on the photo. 1'd like for you to describe the
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operations that are conducted at the facilities,
and if you'd start with the 4242 buil ding.

A At 4242 \West Filnore we conduct the
production of the color sanples basically. W mx
the paint. W match the customer's colors to the
custoner specifications. So the color natching
operation perforns that.

And once the colors and the bases are
m xed sone of that material goes to the coating
departnent, and the coating departnent will then
coat that paint on paper or whatever substrate it
m ght be; and then sonme other material wll get
shipped to other facilities, the bases and col ors
and sone webs and coated sheets as well.

W al so have sone research and devel opnent
activities going on at 4242 for new products and
new t hings that we're working on

Q You nentioned coating. Wat happens to
the material after the color is coated to the
substrate?

A The paint is placed on a roller via either
hand pouring or through a series of dyes. The
paint transfers fromthe roller onto a paper or a

different type of a substrate.
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The paper goes through an oven at
approxi mately 150 degrees where the paint dries;
and then at the end of the process as it cones out
the other end it's rewound into rolls, and the
rolls then are either shipped to other facilities
or cut into sheets.

Q Now, you nentioned that some of the colors
and bases are shipped to other facilities. Wat
facilities are they shipped to?

A The col ors and bases we ship | atex bases
to New Zeal and, we ship |lacquer and | atex bases
to Buffalo, and we ship | acquer bases also to
Poughkeepsi e.

Q You al so indicated that sone of the coated
materi al was shipped. Wiere does that material get
shi pped to?

A W send the Mexico plant sonme cut sheets
or coated sheets, we send the plant in Ireland sone
of the actual rolls for coated webs, and we don't
send any of the webs to Buffalo or to
Poughkeepsi e.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: M. Corman, when you
nmention bases, are you speaking of liquid paint?

THE WTNESS: Yes. A base is kind of a
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starting point for the color. They are generally
clear or white, and then the colorants are added to
the bases to actually nmake the color that you're
| ooki ng at.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Thank you.
BY MR O BRI EN

Q Besi des the Mexico plant and the Irel and
pl ant where el se do you ship the coated product to
fromthe 4242 facility?

A The major source is the 4000 West Fil nore
bui I di ng where they do the finishing, the
assenbling and the production of the color systens.

Q Now, again, you nention the assenbly of
the col or systens at 4000. Are any col or boards

assenbl ed at the 4242 facility?

A No.

Q I's there any printing done at the 4242
facility?

A No.

Q Are there any printing presses at the 4242
facility?

A No.

Q M. Gorman, are you famliar with the

concept of standard industrial classification

28
McCORKLE COURT REPORTI NG, | NC.
CH CAGO, ILLINOS - (312) 263-0052



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

codes?

A Yes, | am

Q And how are you famliar with that
concept ?

A I'"ve had to deal with those on sone of the
annual waste reports that we produce.

Q Is there a classification that's been
designated for the 4242 facility as far as standard
i ndustrial classification?

A Yes.

Q And what is that classification?

A W classified that as paper coating not
el sewhere classified, and | believe that's 26-72.

Q 26-72 is the nunerical code for that

classification?

A Correct.
Q Now, you described the operations at
4242. 1'd like you to turn your attention to the

4000 facility and descri be what operations are
conduct ed there.

A At 4000 we do the printing of some of the
color cards. W also do the slitting or the
cutting of the rolls and sheets.

W al so have a nounting and a | am nating
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departnent that actually puts the chips onto the
paper, and then we have a finishing and bi ndery
operation that cuts the paper and folds it and bags
it and packages it so that it can be shipped to the
cust omer .

Qur shipping and receiving depart nment
handl es just that, the shipping and receiving of
all the different products.

And we al so have a warehousi ng operation
at 4000 that deals with customer fulfillnent. W
hold all of their excess inventories; and, when
they request it, then we will ship it to themfrom
that buil di ng.

Q Now, outside of the col or boards and
di splay tools that you nentioned that use the
material fromthe 4242 plant, does the 4000
facility produce any other products for shipping
and distribution?

A Yes, we do.

Q And what woul d those be?

A They handl e sonme jobs totally independent
of 4242 West Fil nore.

W do sonme work for paper conpanies.

Paper conpanies will consign us to do their color
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systens for the different types of paper and colors
of paper.

For those jobs we will receive the paper
direct and do the cutting, the chipping, the
mounting and the |lam nating, the bindery, all the
work at 4000 West Filnore and then ship fromthere
as wel .

Q I's any coating done at the 4000 West
Filnore facility?

A No.

Q Are there any coating ovens at the 4000
West Filnore facility?

A No.

Q Now, you previously nentioned the other
manuf acturing | ocations. Wat kind of
manuf acturing is performed at the Castl ereagh,
Ireland facility?

A In Castlereagh, Ireland we have a col or
mat chi ng operation, we have a bindery and fi ni shing
operation; and they have been doing that for a
little less than a year there.

Q And, as | understand your testinony,
Cast | ereagh, Ireland receives some of the coated

product fromthe 4242 plant; is that correct?
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A Correct.

Q What ki nd of manufacturing takes place at
the facility in New Zeal and?

A Auckl and, New Zeal and is pretty nuch a
sel f-contai ned color card conpany. They have a
coating operation. They have color matching. They
have bi ndery and finishing and nounting
capabilities there.

Q Does the New Zeal and facility receive any
materials fromthe 4242 Wst Filnore plant?

A Yes. They receive sone bases and
col orants from us.

Q So those would not be the finished coated
product, but they would be the colors and liquid
products we di scussed earlier?

A Ri ght.

Q What ki nd of manufacturing takes place at
the Mexico facility?

A Mexi co has a col or matching operation
They have nounting capabilities down there. They
have a bindery and a finishing operation as well.

Q Do they receive any nmaterials fromthe
4242 st Filnore plant?

A They have received sone coated sheets from
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us for their mounting.

Q The other two facilities are in New York
State, one in Buffalo. Can you explain what the
manuf acturing is at Buffal 0?

A Buffalo is strictly color matching. They
will match custonmers' colors to their
speci fications.

Q Does the Buffal o plant receive any
materials fromthe 4242 Wst Filnore facility?

A Yes. They will receive sone bases and
col orants from us.

Q And the last one is the facility in
Poughkeepsi e, New York. Could you explain what
manuf act uri ng occurs there?

A Poughkeepsi e i s designated as our col or
standards division; and they have a coating
operation, a very small coating operation, along
with color matching; and they also are starting to
do sone plastic sanpling, matching custoners
colors on plastic.

Q Now, does the Poughkeepsie facility
receive any materials fromthe 4242 Wst Filnore
pl ant?

A Yes. They will receive sone bases and
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colorants fromus as well

Q Now, back to the 4000 facility. Has a
standard industrial code classification been
designated for the 4000 West Filnore facility?

A Yes, it has.

Q And what is that classification?

A It's been designated as commercia
printing NEC, not el sewhere classified.

Q And what's the nunerical code for that?

A | believe it's 27-59.

Q And has that been the standard industria
classification code for the 4000 facility for as
| ong as you have been at the conpany?

A Yes, it has.

Q I'd ask the sanme question, then, for the
standard industrial classification code of 26-72 at
the 4242 facility.

Has that been the same code for that
facility for as long as you have been with Col or
Communi cati ons?

A Yes.

Q M. Gorman, has CCl ever applied to any
envi ronment al agency for one permt to cover both

the 4000 West Filnore and 4242 West Fil nore
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facilities?

A Not to ny know edge.

Q And why not ?

A W' ve always treated the two facilities as
doing entirely separate and i ndependent functions.
They do totally different jobs conpletely.

Q Now, has any environnental agency of any
kind or any department ever issued a single pernit
that covered both the 4000 and 4242 West Fil nore
facilities?

A Not to my know edge.

Q Do the 4000 and 4242 facilities have
separate permts for waste handling?

A Yes, they do.

Q And do they have separate pernmits for air
em ssions?

A Yes, they have separate operating
permts.

MR OBREN. Bear with ne for a minute.

(Pause.)

MR OBRIEN. | have no further questions at
this tinme.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  All right. Then we

will proceed with the cross exam nation of the
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Wi t ness.
CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q M. CGorman, are you aware of whether or
not Col or Communi cations previously maintained a
manuf acturing facility at a location other than
4000 or 4242 West Filnore Street?

A Since | have been there those have been
the two facilities that we've manufactured from
but, yes, | was told that they had ot her buil dings
in the area that they used prior to ny com ng
t here.

Q Si nce your comng to the Col or
Comuni cations facility you have not worked with
or been responsible for activities at those
manuf acturing facilities --

A No.

Q -- is that correct?

Are you aware of whether those
manuf acturing facilities for Col or Communications
at other than those |ocations for 4242 and 4000
West Filnore Street are still in operation or
exi stence?

A There is no manufacturing that's going on
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at any of the other ones.

Q Ckay. Are you aware of the |ocation of
manuf acturing facilities owned or operated by CC
prior to your coming to their conmpany?

A I knew that they had other buildings in
the area that they used to work out of.

Q Do you know - -

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Gent| enen, coul d you
both speak up a little bit nore for the benefit of
others in the roon? Thank you
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q Are you aware of where those | ocations
woul d have been?

A Not exact addresses on all those
| ocations, no.

Q Were you or at any tine have you been
aware of a manufacturing facility previously

operated by Col or Conmuni cati ons at 917 South

Ki | dare?
A | had heard they had a buil ding on
Ki | dare

Q Wien to your know edge did Col or
Comuni cati ons purchase the 4000 West Fil nore

Street facility?
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A It was either in 1990 or 1989, | believe.
It was prior to ny com ng there

Q Do you know when manufacturi ng operations
actual | y began?

A | believe it was 1990.

Q Are you aware of when the building at 4242
West Filnore Street was purchased?

A | believe they have been operating there
since 1979.

Q What emi ssion units have generally been
operated at the 4242 facility?

A W have coating machi nes. W have
em ssion units, nostly fugitive em ssions fromthe
col or matchi ng operation, and the wei ghing and
pai nt manufacturing areas. But the coating
machi nes are maj or sources.

Q Can you tell us, M. CGorman, as to how
Col or Communi cations arrived at a SIC code
classification for the 4242 facility?

A It's coating. W could not find anything
el se that we saw in those codes that woul d cl assify
it as anything el se but not el sewhere classified.

Q Do you know whether or not a SIC code for

the 4242 facility has ever been assigned to you --
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to the company by a governnental agency or anyone

el se?
A Not that |I'm aware of.
Q The sane response, | take it, would be

true for the SIC codes identified or classified for

the 4000 facility as well; is that correct?
A Correct.
Q Is it fair to say that there is some

degree of care exercised by Col or Communi cations in
insuring the efficient coating of materials at the
4242 facility?

A Yes.

Q What kind of quality control neasures are
undertaken at the 4242 facility?

A Quality control fromwhat standpoint?

Q Just in insuring efficient coating, good
quality coating, et cetera

A Everything is tested and sanpl ed when it
first comes into the building by the research and
devel opment departnent -- the paints, the different
material used in the bases, the papers, the
pl astics, the tissues.

Any material that will go into the makeup

of a color card or the coating material is tested
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to make sure that it falls within our paraneters
that are necessary to let us do our job properly.

Q Is there any kinds of quality contro
nmeasures undertaken with products that are coated
at the 4242 facility prior to them being
transferred to the 4000 facility?

A The people at the rewind end of the
coating machines --

Q Uh- huh.

A -- as they are there they see the coating
as it conmes out of the machine; and what they will
do is they will flag or put a little marker on the
roll toindicate if there is sone inperfections in
the roll, so that when the webs get over to 4000
West Filnore those will be easily seen and cut out.

Q | take it, then, fromyour response there
will be some quality control neasures that are
i mpl emrent ed or undertaken at the 4000 facility for
materials comng fromthe 4242 facility?

A Correct.

Q Are there any other quality contro
nmeasures you can think of that woul d be inpl enented
to screen materials comng in from4242 to the 4000

facility?
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A I think the same would be true also on the
coated sheets as well because we do send coated
sheets over there. They will mark themor flag
themif there is inperfections on them

Q Are there any particular job or coating
specifications that nmust be considered by the
conpany at the 4242 facility before they can be
processed in any way at the 4000 facility?

A I"mnot sure | understand the question.

Q Are there certain processes at the 4000
facility either as it relates to printing or
cutting of materials that have to be consi dered
before you coat the materials at the 4242 facility?

A Vell, a custoner will give us
specifications for a job as far as the size of the
chi ps and whatnot; and then we have to put together
a job packet for that job as far as what has to be
done in every departnment, and then those departnents
will follow those instructions.

Q The overall purpose is to have or arrive
at an overall schematic or | believe you referred
to it earlier as an overall marketing schenme, in
ot her words?

A What ever that color card or marketing
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system s got to look like, and it's inportant that
everybody on board knows what they are supposed to
do to performthe job.

Q Ckay.

A There is one other quality control that we
do in the 4242 building. That is that the people
in the coating departnment once the paint is on the
paper or the substrate, it goes through oven.

After it's dried and comes out the end of
the oven, we will take a sanple of that coating;
and we will analyze it under a conputer for the
right colors and tints and lights and so forth to
make sure that it hasn't changed in the coating
process and in the drying process.

So that gives us a pretty good indication
that the paint that we've got is going to stand up
to the coating process and give us the right color.

Q Are there any production units at the 4000
facility that may be limted in their capabilities
given certain types of coatings or specifications
at the 4242 facility?

MR O BRIEN. Let nme object here just for the
record because |I'm not sure what you nean by

production units. Could you nmaybe explain that?
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MR. LAYMAN: | can rephrase the question

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Wiy don't we try
t hat .

BY MR LAYMAN:

Q Are there any manufacturing processes,
including printing and cutting of materials at the
4000 facility, that will have to be on occasi on
nodi fied or will not be able to be used because of
certain materials that are coated at the 4242
facility?

A | would have to say no. The coating can
al ways be slit or cut out if it's not to standard.
So we can -- we usually produce nore coating than
what we need for a job so that we always have a
little overage there, and there is generally always
enough of that color to nake the different chips or
rolls.

Q It is fair so say, is it not, that you
wi || know in advance -- Col or Conmunications will
know i n advance as to how both the coatings in
terms of specifications will be applied at the 4242
facility as well as how they will be printed or cut
or put together in brochures, the final product at

the 4000 facility?
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A Everybody has instructions for howto do
their particul ar aspect of the job.

Q Bef ore coatings are conducted on a
particular job at the 4242 facility the conpany
al ready knows what that final product is supposed
to look like based on a custoner request or sone
other reason; is that correct?

A | would say in nost cases that's true.
There is always going to be sone things that may
change down the road, but generally | would say
that's accurate.

MR LAYMAN. Just a nonent, please.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Ckay.

M5. SAWER: Can | take a | ook at one of these
exhi bits here?

CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY M5. SAWER

Q | have Petitioner's Exhibit No. 1.

MR RUBIN: Are we doing dual questioning?

MR OBRIEN. |Is this your question now,

Ms. Sawyer ?
M5. SAWER:  Yes.
MR O BRI EN. Ckay.

BY M5. SAWER
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Q Just if you could take a | ook at one of
the coated or the colors indicated here, one of the
pai nt chi ps, sugarpl um per haps.

A Ckay.

Q When you coat that chip at the 4242
facility, is it identified with the name of the
col or?

A What they will do -- | don't know exactly
what order this was coated or how it was coated
But they will coat it on either a 40-inch web or a
60-inch wi de web; and they may just this color
across the web, or they may have six colors across
the web dependi ng on how the job is laid out.

But at the end of the -- when the roll is
finished and it's wound up or the sheets are cut,
they will market at the 4242 building w th what
colors are on there or the formthat's being coated
basically on that job. They are naking nore than
one formon a job because of the different colors
that are invol ved

Q And then at the 4000 facility the cards
will be printed with the different nanes of the
coatings?

A Correct.
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Q And they will attach the color chips to
the cards essentially?

A Correct. After the material is printed,
then the coating gets placed on it at that point in
this particul ar case.

MR LAYMAN: | believe that's it.

M5. SAWER  No further questions.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: (Ckay. |s there any
redirect?

MR O BRIEN. Very brief.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR O BRI EN

Q Wth regard to the questions you were
asked about quality control, are materials that
cone into the 4000 facility other than those that
originate at the 4242 facility checked for quality
control ?

A Yes.

Q And what kind of materials would those he?

A Printed material. Paper stock. d ues.

Q And this quality control is conducted by
personnel at the 4000 facility, correct?

A Correct.

Q The other question M. Laynman asked you
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about the SIC codes or the S-1-C codes, | believe
your testinony was is that you have used those
SIC codes on permtting and subnissions to

envi ronnment al agencies; is that correct?

A Correct.

Q Have any environnental agencies ever
objected to the SIC codes that have been used for
either of the 4000 or 4242 facilities?

A No.

MR O BRIEN. | have nothing further

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: |s there any
recross?

MR LAYMAN: No

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Al l right. Thank
you, M. Gorman

THE W TNESS: Thank you

MR O BRIEN:. You are excused

(Wtness excused.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: At this point why
don't we take about a five-m nute recess, and then
we wll come back with petitioner's next witness.

MR O BRIEN. Thank you

(Recess taken.)
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HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Back on the record,
and we are ready for petitioner's second w tness.
MR OBRIEN:. W're calling George N chol as.
HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: M. Ni chol as, woul d
you pl ease be sworn?
THE W TNESS: George W N chol as.
CEORGE W NI CHOLAS,
called as a witness herein, having been first duly
sworn, was exam ned and testified as foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR O BRI EN:

Q Just again for the record please state

your nane.
A George W Ni chol as.
Q M. Nicholas, are you enpl oyed?
A Yes, | am
Q And where are you enpl oyed?

A My conmpany is G Nicholas & Associ at es,
| ncor por at ed.

Q And how | ong have you been with G
Ni chol as & Associ at es?

A Since July of 1993.

Q What's your position with that conpany?

A I'"mpresident and principal air quality
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consul tant.

Q VWhat are your typical job duties as an air
quality consultant for G N cholas & Associ ates?

A My typical duties are to provide em ssion
cal cul ations, dispersion nodeling, air quality
permtting and the normal things that go with air

quality oriented work

Q For whom do you provide these services?
A | provide themto industrial clients that
| have.

Q Now, prior to working for G Nicholas &
Associ ates where did you work?

A | started in air quality consulting work
in February 1972 at Sargent & Lundy Engi neers.

Q And where was that |ocated?

A Here in Chicago down the street.

Q And what was your position with Sargent &
Lundy?

A I was an air quality consultant.

Q Did you performat Sargent & Lundy the
sane function you are now performng at G N chol as
& Associ ates?

A Basi cal | y, yes.

Q How | ong were you with Sargent & Lundy

49
McCORKLE COURT REPORTI NG, | NC.
CHI CAGO, ILLINOS - (312) 263-0052



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Engi neers?
A I was there approximately three years.
Q That woul d be until about 19757
A Yes.
Q After that where did you work?

A After that | worked for 15 years for Danes

& Moor e.
Q Danmes, D-a-me-s?
A D-a-me-s, and Moore, Mo-o0-r-e.

Q And what was your position with Danes &
Moor e?

A | was also an air quality consultant.
During that period of tine | al so managed Danmes &
Moore's office here in Chicago.

Q Again, was your job as an air quality
consul tant the sanme duties and functions you are
now performng with G Nicholas & Associ ates?

A Yes, it was.

Q And after working at Danmes & Mbore where
did you work?

A | worked at Roy F. Weston, Inc.

Q And what was your position at Roy F.
Weston, Inc.?

A It was the sane as the other group, air
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qual ity consul tant services

Q Again, performng the sane types of

services that the other two places that you had

wor ked previously?

A Yes.

Q And how |l ong did you work for Roy F.

Weston, Inc.?

A Approxi mately three years.

Q And that takes us up to G N cholas &

Associ ates, correct?

A Correct.

Q Can you tell us your

background after high school ?

A Yes. |

have a bachelor's degree in

educat i ona

mat hemati cs and naster's degree in neteorol ogy.

Q Now, are you or your firmecurrently

engaged by Col or Conmuni cati ons?

A Yes, we are.
Q In what capacity?
A As an air quality consultant

providing air

quality permtting and other types of air quality

services

Q Wien were you first hired by Col or

Communi cati ons?
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A July of 1993.

Q And, again, the sane as with M. Corman.
If I use the term CCl, you will understand that to
mean Col or Conmuni cations? |Is that acceptabl e?

Yes, it is.

Q Have you assisted CCl in preparing and
subm tting applications for air permts?

A Yes, | have.

Q Wiat was the first air permt that you
assisted CCl in preparing?

A W prepared a pernit application for the
4000 West Filnore Street facility for the operation
of their printing machines, their coaters, their
| ami nators and other finery type equipnent.

Q And when was this prepared?

A It was prepared in March of 1994.

Q Was this permit application approved by
the agency? Was a permt issued?

A Yes. The permt was issued June 15, 1994.

Q And this was covering em ssions units at
the 4000 West Filnore facility, correct?

A That's correct.

Q Now, prior to this permt for 4000 being

i ssued by the agency on June 15th had Illinois EPA
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previously issued a separate operating air permt
for the 4242 West Filnore facility?

A Yes. |'ve seen copies of the permts.
The initial one was issued around 1979 when they
bought the 4242 Street facility. But then it was
renewed in 1983, 1988, then again in 1995.

Q And that permt covered em ssions units at
the 4242 West Filnore facility; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Now, after the permt for the 4000 West
Filnore facility was issued in June of 1994, did
CCl file another permt application for that 4000
West Filnore facility?

A Yes, we did.

Q What was the nature of that permt
appl i cation?

A That permt application was really to
construct and operate a | am nating, what we call,
nmounti ng machi ne and to then al so include sone
equi prent that was left out of the original permt
i ssued on June 15t h.

Q What ki nd of equi pment are you referring
to that had been, as you say, left out of the

permt that had been issued on June 15th?
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A It was some of the cutting machines,
stitching machines. Mstly the machi nes that went
into the bindery operation

Q And these are all nachines that are

| ocated at the 4000 West Filnore facility?

A That's correct.

Q Now, this permt application, was this
permt eventually issued by the Illinois EPA?

A Yes, it was.

Q When was that?

A It was May the 3rd of 1995.

Q M. Nichol as, have you ever assisted CC
in preparing permt applications for the 4242 st

Filnore facility?

A Yes, | have.

Q Can you explain the circunstances behind
t hat ?

A Yes. There were two permt applications

subm tted in Septenber of 1994.
One was for the installation and operation
of an afterburner that served the control on
coating lines two and three.
The other application was for the

operation, basically the coating lines and their
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ovens | ocated at 4242 and operating permt.

Q What was the response to those permt
appl i cations?

A The afterburner permt -- well, they
i ssued pernits in three separate ones.

The first one was for the afterburner, and
it was issued in Novenber of 1995. |'msorry,
Novenber 1994.

The second one was for the two boilers
that exist at 4242, and it was issued in Decenber
of 1994.

Now, the operation of the coating |lines
and their ovens was issued in May of 1995.

Q Now, the three pernmts that you just
mentioned as being issued those all were for
emi ssions units at the 4242 West Filnore facility;
is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q So in May 1995 | believe your testinony is
that | EPA issued at |east one operating permt
covering the 4000 West Filnore facility and a
separate operating permt covering the 4242 \West
Filnmore facility; is that correct?

A That's correct.
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Q Now, M. Nicholas, can you tell us what
the annual em ssions volatile organic materials are
fromthe 4242 facility in terns of tons?

A Yes. They are approximately 150 tons per
year .

Q And, if the 4242 facility were consi dered
a source standing alone, would it be considered a
maj or stationary source by under the applicable
regul ati ons?

A Yes, it woul d.

Q And why is that?

A Because their em ssions are greater than
25 tons per year which defines a source to be mgjor
here in Chicago ozone nonattai nment area.

Q Wth regard to the 4000 West Filnore
facility can you tell us in tons per year what the
annual emissions of VOMare fromthat facility?

A It's approximately 10 tons per year

Q Now, if the 4000 facility were consi dered
an i ndependent source standing alone, would it be
consi dered a mejor stationary source under the
appl i cabl e regul ati ons?

A No, it would not.

Q And why is that?
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A Vel |, because their actual and volatile
em ssions are | ess than 25 tons per year to define
it as a mmjor source.

Q Now, M. Nichol as, what are the practica
ram fications for CCl of treating these two
facilities as one source for air permtting
pur poses?

A VWll, the ramifications are that put
toget her as one source both facilities would be
consi dered as mmj or sources and which woul d negate
the mnor source designation for the 4000 Street
facility.

Q What woul d being designated as a nmj or
source or part of a mmjor source nean for the
operations of the 4000 West Filnore facility?

A Vel l, for the 4000 West Filnore Street
facility they would be considered as a mmj or source
for any future equi prent and having to deal with
em ssions for it; and -- well, that's basically it.

Q What kind of restrictions would be placed
on the 4000 facility as a result of being
consi dered part of a mmjor stationary source?

A Vell, the restrictions would be basically

that for any increase in em ssions they woul d have
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to go through the new source review regul ations

whi ch are basically together one point three to one
em ssion of fsets and exerci se those achi evabl e

em ssion rate technol ogy.

Q Now, does inposition of this nmajor
stationary source standard on the 4000 Wst
facility offer any significant control of air
em ssion?

A No, it doesn't. It doesn't offer us any
significant control

Q And why is that?

A Vel l, basically for two reasons. One is
that the equi pnment that woul d be put there define
it as nodification is very, very small

The permt that we got for the one
nmounti ng machi ne that was | ess than four-tenths of
a ton per year in VOMemnssions, and that's the
order with which the em ssions woul d be increased
at that facility.

Q What woul d happen if the conpany wanted to
add a significant new unit that would emt a fairly
hi gh amount of volatile organic nmaterials in terns
of tons per year at the 4000 West Filnore facility?

A Vll, it would be restricted as a mgjor
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stationary source if em ssions would increase to
25 tons per year the sane as it would for 4242.

Q So are you saying if the total em ssions
put out by the 4000 facility went over 25 tons per
year it would then cone under the major source
restrictions?

A That's correct.

MR OBRIEN. Bear with ne for a minute.

(Pause.)

MR OBRIEN. | don't have any further
gquestions at this tine.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Then we wi || have
the cross exam nation by respondent.

CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q M. N cholas, are you fam liar with any
manuf acturing facilities that had previously been
operated by Col or Conmuni cations prior to, say,
1990 or 1991?

A No, I"'mnot famliar with any.

Q You're not famliar with a previous Col or
Comuni cations facility that had been operated at
917 South Kil dare?

A No, |I'm not.
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Q Ckay. Did you take part in preparing a
permtting protocol that was submtted to the
agency on behal f of Col or Conmuni cations through G
N chol as & Associates on or around Decenber 27,
1993?

A Yes, | was.

Q Wuld it refresh your nenory possibly to
review a paragraph in that submttal detailing the
exi stence of a previous facility at that address?

A At 9177

Q That's correct. Wuld it refresh your
menory to | ook at this?

A Yes, | think it woul d.

Q Ckay. Let me find the correct page.

A Yes.

Q You can, in fact, then state with sone
reasonabl e degree of certainty that there was a
manuf acturing facility owned by Col or
Communi cations at that address?

MR O BRIEN. Just for as a point of
clarification, are you asking for his persona
know edge or what basis are you | ooking for?

MR LAYMAN: Just a general recognition that,

in fact, Color Conmmuni cati ons owned or operated
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that facility sonetime prior to the submttal.

THE W TNESS: That was information that was
given to ne by Col or Communi cations, yes.
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q Ckay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Per haps the parties
could agree to stipulate to that.

MR OBRIEN:. W can discuss that.

MR LAYMAN: Ckay.

BY MR LAYMAN:

Q You nentioned earlier that if the 4000
West Filnore Street facility were to be considered
a source in and of itself that it would be
consi dered a non-nmmj or source?

A That's correct.

Q Can you identify the reason as to why
Col or Communi cations submtted a separate CAAPP
application for the 4000 facility in light of the
fact that it fell or would fall underneath that
25 ton applicability threshol d?

A Vel |, we considered the two sources to be
separ at e sources

Q That's correct. But you are aware, are

you not, that a CAAPP permtting threshold, a
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threshol d by which you would require a CAAPP
permt, is of 25 tons; and in this case the 4000
facility would be below that? Can you identify a
reason as to why a CAAPP application was sought?

A I think to cover the bases that, you know,
there is two separate facilities.

Q Are you aware of any future plans or
intent on the part of Col or Comunications to
expand its operations at the 4000 facility?

A I''mnot aware of any.

Q You indicated that if new em ssions units
or production facilities were installed at the 4000
facility that any significant increases in VOM
m ght trigger new source review requirements; is
that correct?

A That's a possibility of that.

Q You al so indicated that there woul d be
sone restrictions associated with any econom c
devel opment at the 4000 facility?

A Yes.

MR O BRIEN. Excuse me. |'msorry. Economc
devel opnent ?

MR LAYMAN: | can rephrase that.

MR O BRIEN. Yeah. Can you rephrase that
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question?

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Can you clarify your
question?
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q You indicated that there m ght be
restrictions on any new production units or
em ssion units devel oped or installed at the 4000
facility at some point in the future

MR O BRIEN. Let nme make one nore point of
clarification, if you don't mnd. This is assum ng

that 4000 is being treated as a single source?

MR LAYMAN: That is correct.

MR O BRI EN. Ckay.

MR RUBIN: A single source with 4242?

MR LAYMAN: A single source in and of itself.
MR OBREN. In and of itself.

MR LAYMAN: Hypot hetically.

MR. O BRIEN. Hypothetically.

THE W TNESS: Yeah. There's possibilities of,
you know, putting in a new nounting machi ne; or
there's a possibility, | suppose, in the future
could install a new printing line. But each of
these kinds of sources would really result in very

smal | VOM eni ssi on i ncreases.
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BY MR LAYMAN:

Q Isn't it true that under the new source
review requirenents of state and/or federal |aw
there isn't a restriction on any increases in the
Chi cago nmetropolitan area for ozone but rather
i ncreases as they might otherwi se constitute a
maj or nodi fication?

MR OBRIEN. [|'mgoing to object to the form
of that question. | don't really understand what
you nmean by increases for ozone. Are you referring
to increases of VOw

MR. LAYMAN.  Yes.

MR O BRIEN. Ckay. Maybe you coul d rephrase

MR LAYMAN: | can rephrase.

MR OBRIEN. -- so | can understand it.
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q You indicated in your testinony that any
increase at the 4000 facility mght trigger new
source revi ew?

A Correct.

Q Isn't it true that that's not the case but
rather that any increase in excess of 25 tons of

VOM vol atile organic material em ssions, would
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i npose possible restrictions?

A If two facilities are one source, we
shoul d understand that, you know, the
cont enpor aneous peri od of addi ng em ssions has
al ready been used; so any increase would then fal
under the new source review regul ations.

Q Ckay. You understand that regardl ess of
whet her you treat both facilities as one source or
whet her you treat them as separately that new
source review contenpl ates | ooking at only a net
em ssions increase?

A That's correct.

Q In doing so you would, therefore, account
for any em ssion offsets or decreases that would
have occurred wi thin that contenporaneous five-year
peri od?

A That's correct, yes.

MR LAYMAN: If | may have just a nonment to
confer.

(Pause.)

M5. SAWER |'ve got a couple of questions.
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CRGOSS EXAM NATI ON
BY M5. SAWER

Q You testified, | believe, that there was a

netting exercise that took place at CCl's facility,

is that correct, previously?

A Not for any formof the submttals.

Q Ckay. You nade sone reference to a
cont enpor aneous period al ready being used. Wat
did you nean by that?

A Vell, if we did go through a conmitting
exerci se for new equi pnent, you know, for
construction of the new equi prent, that we would
have to | ook at that contenporaneous period and
count the net emi ssions.

Q Ckay. So your response was just a
hypot heti cal --

A Hypot heti cal

Q -- future sort of situation. | just
wanted to clarify that.

MR LAYMAN: | believe we have no further
guesti ons.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: |s there any
redirect?

MR O BRIEN: No.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Thank you very nuch,
M. N chol as.

(Wtness excused.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: At this point why
don't we take our lunch break, then we will cone
back with the continuation of the case.

(Wher eupon, a luncheon break

was taken.)

* * *x * *

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: W' re back on the
record. Petitioner's case-in-chief has been
concl uded, and do we have any additiona
stipul ati ons?

MR O BRIEN. W do. The petitioner and
respondent have entered a docurment which we have
entitled "Second Set of Joint Stipulations of
Fact," which | am handing to the hearing officer
There are five additional stipulations nunbered 13
through 17 following the first set of one through
twel ve that we tendered this norning.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Wl |, thank you very

much for your pronpt response to that inquiry; and
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| believe we are

ready, then,

for respondent's

case-in-chief. Do you want to call your first

W t ness?

MR LAYMAN:

Sure. By way of a prelimnary

matter |'d like to note for the record that the

parties are willing to stipulate to the

admi ssability of

what will be marked | think n

Respondent's Exhibit 1 if that's acceptable, t

adm ni strative record

ow

he

We have three volunes, so shall we nark

t hem accordi ngly

each?

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON

Respondent' s Exhi

MR LAYMAN:

bit 1 --
Ckay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON

Let's create on

-- that include

e

s al

three volumes; and then if you need to refer to

page nunber you might preface that with the vol une

numnber .

MR LAYMAN:

Ckay.

(Wher eupon, Respondent's

Exhibit No. 1 was narked for

identification.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON

Then the agency

record is admtted into evidence as Respondent's
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Exhi bit 1.

MR LAYMAN: Ckay.

(Wher eupon, document so of fered
was received in evidence as
Respondent's Exhibit No. 1.)

MR LAYMAN: |'d like also to nove for
adm ssion of a map of the nore generalized area
It's taken fromthe Chicago vicinity six-county
street map gui de published by Rand McNally.

| have copies for both M. O Brien and the
hearing officer and then the board exhibit itself.
So this would be designated as
Respondent's Exhibit 2, | believe.
(Wher eupon, Respondent's
Exhi bit No. 2 was narked for
identification.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  All right. |Is there
any objection to the introduction of this map as
Respondent's Exhibit 2?

MR O BRIEN. W don't have any objection.
wonder if it mght be nore appropriate to admt it
at the time it is discussed. | don't think we are
going to have any objection to it, but for whatever

that's worth
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MR LAYMAN: Ckay.
HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: For sinplicity sake
let's admt it at this tine as Respondent's Exhibit
2, and if an objection arises you can raise it
| ater.
MR O BRI EN. Fine.
(Wher eupon, docunent so offered
was received in evidence as
Respondent's Exhibit No. 2.)
MR LAYMAN: The respondent calls M.
Chri st opher Ronmi ne.
HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: M. Ronai ne, woul d
you pl ease be sworn
CHRI STOPHER ROVAI NE,
called as a witness herein, having been first duly
sworn, was exam ned and testified as foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR LAYMAN:
Q M. Ronaine, would you state your nane for
the record agai n, please?
A My name is Christopher Helton (phonetic)
Ronmai ne.
Q Woul d you state your occupation?

A I am an environnmental engineer enployed
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by the Illinois Environnental Protection Agency
Division of Air Pollution Control.

Q Coul d you describe, if you will, your
educati onal background since high school ?

A I have a Bachel or of Science in
engi neering and a Bachelor of Arts in art from
Brown University.

|'ve conpleted course work toward a
master's of environmental engineering at Southern
[llinois University Carbondal e.

Q Wien did you start work for the Illinois
Envi ronnmental Protection Agency?

A In June of 1976.

Q What was your role and title with the
agency at that tine?

A I was an analyst in the Division of Ar
Pollution Control permt section, a junior |evel
anal yst .

Q Wiere did you nove up fromthere in terns
of your enploynent with the agency?

A Vell, | raised in seniority as an anal yst;
and |'mcurrently nmanager of the new source review
unit in the air permt section

Q What is your designated role as manager of
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that unit or section?

A VWell, the principal role of that unit is
to assist in the proper inplenentation of various
prograns for new and nodified sources of air
pol lution control

That the Federal Cean Air Act mandates
and al so establishes additional prograns for new
equi prent cal | ed new source performance standards.

It also has a prevention of significant
deterioration programand provisions for major
construction activities in nonattainment areas.

My goal or role in the permt section is
to eval uate changes in those prograns and to nmake
sure the pernmt section is properly inplenmenting
t hem

As part of that activity | would be
involved in rule changes for the board to the
extent that rule-making is necessary.

I will be involved in-house training of
analysts. | would also be involved in assisting
anal ysts in the day-to-day review of specific
appl i cati ons.

As manager of the new source review unit

|"ve al so been involved in a multitude of other
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regul atory activities for volatile organic materia
em ssi ons.
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Clean Air Act Permt Programfor the State of
[11inois.
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position as a new source review manager ?

A | believe 12 or 13 years.

Q As part of your present work

responsibilities have you becone very famliar with

many, if not nost, of the Clean Air Act prograns
and requirenments?
A | have becone very famliar with the

permtting prograns for stationary sources of air

pol lution under the Clean Air Act.

I amdefinitely not an expert
i ke vehicle inspection
transportation contro
expertise is dealing with stationary sources.

Q So you are famliar,

mai nt enance and

measures. My area of

then, with the

in things

federal prevention of significant deterioration

program as you said?
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Yes, | am
Q How are you famliar or how do you work
with that on a daily basis, if you will, with the

federal PSD program at the agency?

A The primary reference for these prograns
is the regulations that USEPA adopts.

As part of those rul e nmakings, we also
| ook at proposals of rules, the preanbles of
adopti on.

We al so | ook at gui dance provi ded by USEPA
and manual s provi ded by USEPA. Periodically we
attend workshops or seminars handl ed by USEPA. Wé
al so discuss specific projects with USEPA. USEPA
provides us with informati on on determ nations they
have made for other states.

There is a wide variety of techniques that
we use to gain information on the status of those
programs and the rul es thenselves to a case-by-case
det erm nati on.

Q Are you also famliar with the Clean Ar
Act federal nonattainment area resource review
progr anf

A Yes, | amfanmiliar with the Cear Air Act

-- Federal dean Air Act nonattai nnent area revi ew
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program for stationary sources.

That is a program which does require rule
maki ng by a state to actually adopt state rules to
i npl ement the federal program

| have been involved on behal f of the
agency on various rul e nmakings before the board
adopting Illinois' new source review program

|"ve al so been involved in discussions
wi t h USEPA concerning their approval of the program
and in the actual inplenentation of that program as
applied to new projects.

Q If you don't mind going into alittle
further detail on that |ast question, how does
USEPA play a role in inplenmenting the new source
review programin conjunction with the state?

A Vell, in terns of the nonattainment area
program even though we have state rules it is
pursuant to a federal requirenment under the C ean
Air Act to have a new source revi ew program

There are federal |aws that al so have
concern, and the USEPA is concerned that there be
consi stency with national policy and nationa
i mpl erent ati on of those prograns.

So after USEPA approves a state's rules,
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they are still very concerned about the day-to-day
i npl ement ati on of those rules.

As specific projects conme up where sone
interpretation is necessary we may, in fact,
consult with USEPA for guidance.

That isn't necessarily the first place
we'd | ook. Qbviously we'd |look at the rules
t hensel ves, adopting material, existing guidance.

But, if an issue canme up where we thought
it would be useful to get USEPA gui dance on a
point, we would certainly consult with them and get
their opinion.

USEPA is al so involved as major and
significant construction projects do undergo public
notice before a permt is issued, and USEPA is part
of that public notice period and has an opportunity
to review our proposed action and may, in fact,
have coments or suggestions as to how we shoul d
be appl yi ng the new source revi ew program

Q Where are the state's rules for
nonat t ai nnent new source review found in the
board' s regul ations?

A The state's rules for new source review

are found in Part 2 of 3.
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Q And, again, you had indicated that you
had been involved with the devel opnent or the
promul gation of those rules; is that correct?

A Vel l, | have been involved on behal f of
the agency as proponents of various rul e packages
bef ore the board.

Q You had indicated earlier you partici pated
and attended a nunber of semi nars or training
progranms relating to new source review both PSD as
wel | as nonattai nment area

Coul d you give us an idea of how many you
attend on an annual basis?

A Wll, at this stage | don't attend that
many on an annual basis. |It's nore conmon than
I'd be giving the training prograns for in-house
traini ng.

Wien there are opportunities for training,
USEPA has a tel econference system W would sit in
or try to get a tape and get a look at it at sone
poi nt ..

Q So sone of the training programs that you
woul d participate or conduct in this case would be
progranms sponsored by other agencies or other

sponsors, if you will?
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A Vell, | do a lot of in-house training.
Part of being a regulatory agency is providing
gui dance to the regul ated public as well.

A lot of our recent activity now has been
outreach on the Cean Air Act Permt Program and
assisting applicants in preparing applications and
fulfilling their obligations under that program

Q Ckay. By "in-house" who do you nean
primarily?

A By "in-house training" | mean primarily
the permt section, but there are also people in
the field operation section who do inspections who
al so have to be famliar with devel opment in the
new source revi ew program and al so have to be aware
of the Clean Air Act Permt Programas well.

Q How fam liar are you with the Illinois
Title 5 program as approved by USEPA?

A I"'mvery famliar with it, 1'd say. | was
involved -- was part of the task force in the
agency that worked on devel opi ng the agency's
proposed | egi sl ation

| al so worked on the task force that
wor ked on the agency's regul ations at Part 270 for

the Title 5 program

78
McCORKLE COURT REPORTI NG, | NC.
CH CAGO, ILLINOS - (312) 263-0052



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

I was al so involved perhaps in a nore
manageri al or oversight role in the form
preparati on.

As | said, I've participated in a nunber
of workshops and training sessions for the
regul ated public expl aining our expectations with
respect to Illinois' Title 5 permt program

Q Have you played a role in providing
wor kshops or presentations in-house as well for the
Title 5 progran?

A Yes, | have.

Q Is it fair to say you have sone
famliarity with the statutory source definition
for the PSD and nonattai nment area new source
revi ew progranf

A Yes, | do have famliarity with those
definitions.

Q What can you generally tell us about what
t hose definitions provide?

A Vell, it's always good to go back to the
definitions thensel ves because words do change
slightly fromdefinition to definition

But in general the definitions of

stationary source or the new source review program
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prevention of significant deterioration program
established three criteria for what constitutes a
single source; and a single source is the collection
of pollutant activities that are located on a

single piece of property or adjacent or contiguous
pi ece of property that are under comon control or
under the control of persons -- under common

control and finally that belong to the sane

i ndustrial group.

So there are three comon criteria.
General ly location, proximty, supervision, contro
and then a functional criteria.

Q In applying those definitions at the state
| evel, are there any other areas or sources that
the | EPA would look to to guide its determ nation
of what constitutes a source?

A In ternms of applying those definitions, we
woul d | ook to whatever guidance we can obtain that
is relevant to the circunstance.

We'd certainly look at the materia
acconpanyi ng the adoption of those regul ations.
W' d | ook at gui dance that has been prepared
historically if we had gui dance.

The nmost authoritative conpilation of
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gui dance from USEPA on the new source review
programis its 1990 new source revi ew workshop
manual

If an issue wasn't adequately stressed and
those docunents, set of circunstances, didn't quite
fit, we then | ook at other case-by-case
determ nations that were made and, if necessary,
consult directly with USEPA

Q How fam liar are you with the stationary
source definition applied or existing under the
stage (phonetic) Title 5 progran?

A Vell, | don't have as nuch familiarity
with that definition. That is a new program j ust
approved by USEPA in March of |ast year.

W& are comning up on our one-year
anniversary. So | certainly don't have the |l ength
of famliarity with it, but insofar as | was
involved in the devel opnent of that | amfamliar
withit.

I have also tried to keep up to date with
various new policy, interpreting that, |awsuits
rel evant to that definition.

That is a slightly nore conplex definition

because it includes both the definition of najor
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source as found in new source review and prevention
of significant deterioration program and then
there is a different separate definition of
"source" that's being used for regul ation of

hazard safety (phonetic).

I'"mprobably nore familiar with the new
source review PSD definition than hazard safety
definition.

Q As to the new source review prograns both
nonattai nnent area and PSD, how do the definitions
of those generally conpare with that of Title 5?

A O her than the definition of "source" for
hazard st afal uden (phonetic), | believe that the
definition of major stationary source under the
prevention of significant deterioration program and
under the new source review nonattai nment area
programare simlar to the Title 5 definition of
maj or si x (phonetic).

Q Have you been involved with previous | EPA
determ nations of source issues for permts under
both PSD and nonattai nment area? | believe you've
i ndi cated you have, correct?

A Yes, | have been. During the course of

review of permt applications involving new source
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review or prevention of significant deterioration
we occasionally run across situations where the
various entities involved in a project don't
necessarily clearly neet the definition of
"source."

In those circunstances it's necessary to
further evaluate whether the entities that are
involved in the project are properly considered one
source or properly considered separate sources.

In some circunstances we're | ooking at an
application where a person contends that they have
two separate entities which should be separate
sour ces.

W want to nake sure that they are
properly kept apart, properly eval uated as ot her
sour ces.

In other cases people may be trying to
lump two entities together and nay be | ooking at it
fromthe other perspective and asking whether it
may be nore correct to | ook at those as separate
sources for the purposes of prevention of
significant deterioration or new source review.

Q Wien assessing the criteria relating to

maj or industrial groupings as a source definition
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what woul d or what does | EPA generally | ook at?

A Qur approach to that criteriais to try to
first identify principal activity at a source, | ook
at what is its mgjor product, what is its mgjor
functi on.

And once we've reached that determ nation
of what is the primary activity then to see
whet her, in fact, other activities at that source
are properly considered support activity so that
they should really be assuned or subsuned into that
principal activity or whether there are other
activities at the source that, in fact, mght be
consi dered other stand al one principal activities.
W have to examine it further to see
whet her, in fact, even though there are other
principal activities they mght still have the same
maj or industrial grouping, still have to be
consi dered toget her.

Q If a conpany purports to have activities
in the same two-digit SIC code or, in other words,
the same naj or group, how will the agency apply the
criteria? Do you understand the question?

A Vell, the relevant definition that we're

working with tal ks about a comon industria
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grouping, a mgjor industrial grouping, a single
i ndustrial grouping.

The categorization schene that USEPA has
adopted for this purpose is the standard industria
classification code manual. They've borrowed
that. That is an existing classification system
that is used for other purposes.

And what they have said on using that
classification systemis if entities have the same
two-digit classification code they are consi dered
to be along the same nmajor industrial grouping.

If we end up with entities that have the
sane two-digit major grouping, we'd conclude they
are the sane mgjor industrial activity. W would
not find any basis to distinguish themas having
different industrial groupings.

Q If a conpany purports to have activities
that belong to different SIC codes, what then would
t he agency | ook at or consider?

A What we woul d be looking at if they allege
they have, in fact, two different two-digit SIC
codes for the various entities, is to see whether
in fact, those activities are, in fact, related in

sone way where one of those entities or sone of
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those entities mght be considered support
facilities for the other entity.

So that one would be the principa
activity, and the other support facilities would be
as supporting facilities supporting that principa
activity.

That's a circunstance that occasionally
arises. Mst of the exanples we have dealt nore
with the Title 5 situations than they have for
new source revi ew and prevention of significant
deterioration.

But we have been going through things |ike
cenent plants where a cenent plant nanufactures
cenent. They also have a quarry that nay be
associated with it producing raw materials.

In fact, if it was a stand al one quarry,
it would have a different two-digit SIC code for
the cement plant. Cenent plants are under m nera
products SIC codes. Quarry are under, | guess,
crushed rock. That's two different SIC codes.

However, in a circunstance where the
quarry is supplying feed material to a cenment plant
where the quarry is considered a support facility,

we woul d not consider it to be a separate source
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Q And in that exanple that would be the
case even if the activities, as you indicated, had
different SIC codes or purported to have different

SI C codes?

A That's correct. This issue of
classification of an SIC code -- purported SIC
codes, I'mlooking at it in terns of classification

for environnmental purposes in terns of assigning an
SIC code to inplenent either Title 5 or PSD or new
source review. There may be, in fact, other SIC
codes that have been assigned for other purposes.
As | said, USEPA borrowed an existing
classification code systemthat was already
establ i shed for other purposes for defining what
is a stationary source

Q Wiere is the support facility notion
generally derived fromto your know edge?

A The concept of support facility was
originally identified when the USEPA revised its
prevention of significant deterioration rules
followi ng the Al abama Power court decision back in
1980, and it's discussed in the preanble to the
final revised PSD rules at that period of tine.

It's also reflected in the USEPA' s new source
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revi ew wor kshop manual

As | said, that is a good conpil ation of
historic interpretations and deci sions that have
been made. That was issued in 1990, and that
reflects the preanble of the PSD rul es.

Q Switching gears a little bit, when
assessing the criteria for the source definition
for location or adjacency and contiguous, what wl |
the | EPA generally | ook at under circunstances?

A Well, again, we'd be looking at a
circunstance where it wasn't imediately apparent
whet her facilities were properly being separated or
properly being added together.

W want to nake sure that they are being
handl ed properly in terms of being a single source
or multiple source

Goviously, we think that the contiguous
definition is a fairly straightforward term
Conti guous generally nmeans touching in sonme
manner .

So we would | ook to see whether, in fact,
there is a physical connection between the
properti es.

The adjacent one is a little bit nore
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general . But, again, we'd | ook at how cl ose
together are the facilities, the different
entities; what is the interrelationship between
the entities; do they work as a single
manuf act uri ng establishnent or do they, in fact,
operate independently; and then we'd al so | ook at
whet her there are, in fact, other types of physica
connections between the various establishnments.

Q So it is possible that activities could be
|ocated at a different site or parcel of property
and yet still be considered the sane source?

MR OBRIEN. |'mgoing to have to object to
the formof that question for two reasons.

One, it's asking for a legal conclusion
But, secondly and nore inportantly, it's asking for
testinony on what is really the ultimate issue in
this case; and | think it's inappropriate to have
testinony on that when it's really an issue of |aw
to be decided by the board.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: M. Layman?

MR LAYMAN: | can rephrase.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:.  (bj ecti on

sust ai ned.
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BY MR LAYMAN:

Q Has the agency considered in review ng
past new source review pernit applications
activities to be of the same source even though
they may be separated by sone di stance?

A Yes, we have. W routinely have
consi dered establishments which have vari ous
conponents that are separated by roads, rail lines,
other types of entities to be part of a single
source for purposes of new source review Ch,
wel |, for purposes of PSD.

There are many facilities which are
separated by things like public streets and rai
lines, but there are al so exanpl es where sources
have di fferent conponents that are separated by
nore substantial distances.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON.  And by PSD you nean
prevention of significant deterioration?

THE W TNESS: Yes, | do.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Thank you.

BY MR LAYMAN:

Q What pur poses under the new source review

progranms are served by aggregating simlar sources

that may be closely | ocated?
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A Well, the new source review prograns,
both the prevention of significant deterioration
and the nonattai nment area new source revi ew
program are attenpting to eval uate whether a
proposed construction activity will have a major
impact on air quality, certainly have a mgjor
change in the increase in enission

If a proposed construction project wll
have a mmjor increased eni ssion, these prograns
trigger additional requirements.

They require trigger requirenents for
| onest achi evenent em ssion rate or best available
control (phonetic) technol ogy, a case-by-case
determ nation of appropriate control |evels.

They will also trigger requirenents to
address the inmpact in air quality.

Under prevention of significant
deterioration of the trigger and anal ysis
requi renent to confirmthat the proposed project
woul d not cause or contribute to an air quality
violation, and a nonattai nnent area woul d trigger
a requirement for offsets to address the inpact of
the increased em ssions.

The principle that USEPA established when
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they were responding to the Al abama Power deci sion
was that it is appropriate to use the grouping
definition of "source" that fairly eval uates

whet her proposed construction activity will, in
fact, have a major inpact on air quality; and that
has two concerns.

First of all, it would not be appropriate
to allow a conpany to fragnent their activities
in a certain area into a nunber of much snaller
entities that individually would escape review
neverthel ess having in total fromall those
activities a significant increase in em ssions
and potentially a significant inpact on air
quality.

On the other hand, if a conpany is nmaking
conpensating changes, if they are having increases
at one point and decreases at another point,
likewise, it's not appropriate to trigger the
poi nts which are having significant increases in
em ssions as having a najor inpact on air quality
if, in fact, there are other conpensating decreases
el sewhere at the source

So it gets back to the principle of how

you establish an appropriate definition of "source"
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that will assure that potentially significant
changes in enmissions that could affect air quality
wi || undergo appropriate scrutiny under PSD or
nonattai nment area revi ew

Q Are you aware of any exanples in the new
source review context by the PSD or nonattai nment
area where the agency, the | EPA, has considered
separate | ocations or buildings to be one source
despite being separated by sone di stance?

A Vel l, the exanple |I'mnost aware of that's
the nost significant separation in distance is
permts that were issued to Acne Steel

Acme Steel operates a blast furnace and
coke oven operations in the Cty of Chicago. Those
operations are involved in naking iron. That iron

subsequently has to be refined and converted into

st eel

Acme's steel -nmaking operations are, in
fact, located in Riverdale, Illinois in a different
communi ty.

The two | ocations, | believe, are
approximately ten mles apart; however, we | ooked
at those two entities and concluded that those two

shoul d be treated as a single source for new source
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revi ew pur poses.

Under normal circunstances nost plants
operate as integrated steel nmlls where there wll
be both coke oven facilities, blast furnace
facilities and steel -making facilities |ocated
either on a single piece of property or on
properties that are in nuch closer proximty.

In this circunstance, whatever the reason,
the history of these particul ar conpani es these
operations were separated a nmuch greater distance
but we concluded that it woul d be appropriate,
neverthel ess, to consider themas a single source.

Q In Acne Steel's case were those facilities
operating as one or independently with each other?
A In Acne Steel's case the two facilities,
the two entities, certainly operated in an
i ntegrated fashion.

There was, in fact, an oxygen pipeline
that connected them That's significantly m nor,
bel i eve.

Wiat's nore inportant is that they had
to transport the hot iron fromthe Chicago facility
to the Riverdale facility for further processing.

They had to make sure that they had the
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capacity to handle that hot iron in Riverdale, or
they had a potential for the iron cooling and no
| onger being suitable for being processed.

Li kewi se, they had to nmake sure there was
enough hot iron com ng from Chicago to make sure of
utilization of the Riverdale facility.

Their concerns about quality of steel
quality of metal, that would relate the two
facilities also.

Q The final manufacturing process in Acne
Steel's case it was conpleted at the Riverdal e
facility?

A That's correct. There is not much market
for the internedi ate product of hot iron because it
woul d have to be further refined.

Their goals, in fact, were to convert the
nmetal to steel and then to roll that steel into
product for sale.

Q Are there any other exanples that cone to
m nd where in a PSD context the agency has again
treated separate buildings or facilities as one
despite being separated by sone di stance?

A Anot her exanpl e that conmes to mnd that

was involved in was Lone Star Cenent. Lone Star
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Cenent operates a quarry that is a little bit |ess
than a mle away fromthe actual cenent
manuf acturing facility.

We have considered that quarry to be part
of the cenent manufacturing facility even though
they are that distance apart.

There is, in fact, a conveyor belt that
transports the crushed stone fromthe quarry to the
cenent plant for further processing.

Q I's the rel ationship between the production
areas or activities at the Lone Star source simlar
in respect to that of Acne Steel ?

A They are certainly simlar in as the one
entity produces an internediate product or raw
material for the other.

I think in the case of the steel nill
there is much nmore concern about cl ose coordinated
managenent of the two facilities given the need to
transport hot metal. It's a lot easier to store
rock and stockpile it for whenever it is needed.

Q Wien did you personally first becone aware
of Col or Communi cations' facilities in Chicago?

A The first time that | recall becom ng

aware of themwas in January of 1994,
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Q And how did you beconme aware of themin
that context?

A M. N cholas subnmitted a proposed
permitting protocol to the agency to deal wth
permitting of the Col or Conmmunications' facilities
i n Chi cago

That was assigned to ne to |look at. |
reviewed it and sent comments under M. Sutton's
signature -- that's Don Sutton, the manager of the
permt section -- indicating that there were sone
serious concerns to be resol ved about the proposed
permtting strategy. As a result of that there was
a subsequent neeting with Col or Communications
| ater that year.

Q What can you tell us that you recal
about the agency's pernitting history of Color
Comuni cations at that point in tinme?

A Vel |, the concern that we had at that
point in tinme was that Col or Comuni cati ons had
let the permit for the one facility lapse, it had
expired without renewal. That was the 4242
facility.

And then the 4000 West Filnore Street, the

much smaller facility, in fact, did not have a
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state operating permt.

So we were faced with a facility that
didn't have a permt under the state permt program
as well as an entity or building that had let its
historic permt |apse.

There had al so been some construction
activity without getting the necessary construction
permt, so we had a concern about renedying the
current status of the various buildings and units
under the current state permtting program which
had to be resolved really before we prepared to
nove into the Title 5 pernmitting program which at
that point hadn't even been approved by USEPA

Q Do you recall in the early review of the
permtting protocol there being a discussion as to
the existence of a third facility perhaps prior to
that point in tinme?

A | don't know if that was discussed or
focused in on very heavily during the initia
review of the permt applications.

That point certainly becane significant
later on in the review of the permt applications
in, | guess, the spring of 1995.

As | said, we had a nunber of different
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permtting i ssues to deal wth.

We had a facility that was in operation
didn't have a pernmit; so we had to i ssue an
operating pernmt for that existing facility.

We al so had sone equi pnent that had been

built without getting the necessary construction

permt.

In the absence of a construction pernit
that piece of equipnent -- it was a new coating
line -- didn't have any restrictions on the nmanner

in which it wuld operate and, in fact, had in the
absence of such restrictions the potential to emt
nore than 25 tons of volatile organic material and
woul d be considered a maj or source.

And then there were some m nor pieces of
equi prent that were subsequently proposed to be
added to the 4000 West Filnore Street facility.

So we had to conduct an eval uation of
whether, in fact, a major increase in em ssions
had occurred or would occur as a result of that
construction activity.

As part of making that determnation it
became inportant for us to evaluate what was, in

fact, the source we should be dealing with; and
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initially we were concerned that it appeared that a
facility had been built at 4000 West Filnore, a new
facility, which even though not a major source by
itself had certain enmissions that contributed to
the overall increases in emssions by Col or
Communi cat i ons.

At sone point in time sonebody who was
revi ewi ng the previous docunentati on becane aware
that that 4000 West Filnore Street facility was,
in fact, the recipient of operations that had
previously been conducted by Col or Communi cati ons
at a building on Kildare Street which was also in
the same general proximty to Col or
Communi cat i ons.

At that point we concluded that it would
be appropriate to not consider the Wst Filnore
Street facility to be new construction but rather
rel ocation of those existing operations, and we
sinply focused in on the new equi pnent being
introduced into the area rather than the rel ocation
of equipnment from South Kildare to West Filnore

Q Do you recall the specific address of the
South Kildare facility?

A | believe that that address was recorded
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as 917 South Kildare Street.

Q Could you identify on the Respondent's
Exhi bit No. 2 the general locality of where you may
have pl aced or you did place that facility to be in
relation to the 4242 facility?

A Yes, | can. | amlooking at Exhibit 2 --
Respondent's Exhibit 2 and | ooking at Filnore
Street and the 4200 bl ock

Kildare is a north-south street that is to
the west of that block, and using the street nunber
identifications on that map the 917 South Kil dare
Street was within a couple of blocks of the 4242
West Filnmore Street |ocation

And the South Kildare facility certainly
seenmed to be in the sane range, if not closer, than
the 4000 West Filnmore Street to the 4242 West
Filmore Street buil di ng.

Q How woul d the agency have | ooked at or how
woul d the agency have consi dered operations at the
917 South Kildare facility to be in relation to the
4242 facility?

MR OBRIEN. |'mgoing to object to the form
of that question because, frankly, | just really

don't understand the relation question
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I think the question is how did they
relate fromone facility to the other facility;
and, you know, maybe ny objection is just asking
for a clarification of the question.

MR. LAYMAN:. The question, | think, is in the
nature of how both facilities would have been
treated for source determ nation purposes.

MR OBREN. Well, then | guess maybe the
ot her objection would be a foundation objection as
to how this wi tness woul d know how t hat woul d have
been treat ed.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Is it a
hypot heti cal ?

MR LAYMAN: In this context it's a
hypot hetical, absolutely. |It's purely a
hypot heti cal since the agency did not have at that
time an opportunity to nake a determ nation.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  |'m going to sustain
t he obj ecti on.

BY MR LAYMAN:

Q How di d the agency process the permt
application submtted for the first tine for the
newer 4000 West Filnore Street facility?

A My recollection is that we issued that
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permt, we issued an operating pernmt for an
operating facility.

Q When Col or Commruni cations came in with a
permt application for an operating pernmt for the
4000 facility, how did the agency treat that
submittal ?

A | don't recall.

Q Do you recall whether or not the agency
had previously pernmtted the operations at the 917
South Kildare facility?

A No, | don't. M recollectionis nore
specific to the circunmstances involving the

addi tional construction activity at the 4000 West

Kildare Street. | nmean 4000 West Filnore Street.
Q Ckay.
A That's where the i ssue of new source

revi ew becane invol ved because we had a proposed
construction activity.

At that point it was necessary to eval uate
what were the contenporaneous increases and
decreases that would be occurring at Col or
Communi cat i ons.

At that point in time we believe that, in

fact, those two buil dings should be considered part
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of a single source.

W had an increase in emssions fromthe
construction of a new line at the 4242 Wst Filnore
Street. That |line was constructed after Novenber
of '92.

But at that point Col or Communi cati ons
had, in fact, installed an afterburner on that |ine
and had accepted limtations restricting its
em ssions to something on the order of 24 tons
per year.

Col or Conmmuni cations was requesting a
permt to add an additional |am nating nachine or
nmounti ng machi ne at the 4000 West Kildare Street
| ocation. That had emi ssions about four-tenths of
a ton.

W | ooked at the conbination of 24 tons
and four-tenths of a ton; canme up with a
cont enpor aneous i ncrease of 24.4 tons which was
| ess than 25 tons, not a nmgjor nodification

So we issued a construction permt -- a
joint construction operating pernmt, | believe --
to allow themto go ahead and install and operate
t he proposed new machi ne at 4000 West Kil dare

Street.
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In conjunction with that activity we al so
sent a letter to Col or Conmuni cations notifying
them that we had | ooked at various information they
provided in their permt application considering
whet her the two buil di ngs shoul d be consi dered
separate sources or not.

And then after a detailed review we were
not convinced, that we believed it was appropriate
to consider the two buildings as a single source
for purposes of new source review and to alert
themthat under the Title 5 context we woul d be
expecting those two buildings to be considered
and treated as a single source.

Q I will show you now from Respondent's
Exhibit 1 Pages 9A and 9B, a letter dated May 9,
1995, fromthe agency to M. Steve Wnter. |Is that
the letter you were referring to in your | ast
answer ?

A Yes, it is. This is the letter that we
sent out about the sane tinme that we issued the
construction pernmt for the new nmachi ne at 4000
West Fil nore.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: What page of the

record are we on, M. Layman?
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MR. LAYMAN. 9A and 9B

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: kay. Thank you.
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q M. Rommine, in receiving a perm:t
application submttal from Col or Conmuni cati ons
for operations at its 4000 West Filnore Street
facility, did the agency consolidate all of the
operations activity at that source into the permt
for the 4242 facility?

A Are you referring back to the activity in

the spring of 1995 --

Q Yes, | am
A -- that we discussed?
No, we did not. W were still operating

under the state pernmt program and we allowed the
permt to continue as a pernmt on its own under a
separate | D nunber distinct fromthe |ID nunber for
the 4242 Wst Filnore Street building.

Q Wiat is the agency's purpose in assigning
permt | D nunbers?

A Permit ID nunmbers were created for the
initial operation of the permt programwhen it
was established in 1973.

Under the state permitting program
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whi ch applies to both new equi pment and exi sting
equi prent, a person can apply for a permt for

i ndi vi dual pieces of equi prent or individua
emssion units if they so desire.

There are comnpani es that the state program
had many permts at a single location. The record
that we always talk about is A East Dally
(phonetic) in Decatur; that, in fact, their
manuf act uri ng establishnments had over 250
i ndividual permts.

W used identification nunbers as a neans
toidentify a single location for a nunber of
different permts.

At that point in tinme it was useful for
the purposes of just alerting our field staff that,
in fact, when they visited that particular site
they should be aware of all these different permts
and grouping all those pernmits together in our
filing system

Since that time |ID nunbers have taken on
additional roles. They are used for the fee
programat this point in tine.

Under the fee programfor air pollution

sources and sources required to pay a fee per site,

107
McCORKLE COURT REPORTI NG | NC
CH CAGO, ILLINOS - (312) 263-0052



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

we have allowed the identification nunber to stand
as the distinct identifier for paynent of fee so
that we expect each entity with a distinct ID
nunber to be paying its own separate pernmit fee.

We have carried the I D nunber concept
on Title 5in terms of identifying particular
sour ces.

That could be inportant in terns of
distinguishing Title 5 permits fromconstruction
permts that might apply to that sane | ocation

However, the assignment of identification
nunber does not indicate a determ nation under
Title 5 or, in fact, under new source review or PSD
whet her those separate entities woul d be considered
one source for those purposes or not. There are
ot her purposes for which the identification nunber
system was establi shed.

Q During the initial review of the permt
applications as they canme in in 1994 for Col or
Comuni cati ons, what becanme known to the agency
about the nature of the relationship between the
exi sting Col or Comunications' facilities at the
4242 \West Filnmore Street facility and the 4000 West

Filnmore Street facility?
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A The information in the application that
we saw it suggested that there was a definite
rel ati onshi p between those two facilities.

It suggested to us that there was, in
fact, a support facility relationship; that the
4242 facility produced an internedi ate product that
was subsequently finished in the 4000 West Fil nore
Street buil ding.

Because of that apparent relationship
we requested further information from Col or
Comuni cati ons expl ai ning how those two facilities
rel at ed.

W asked questions about how nuch materia
was transferred fromone building to the other
bui I di ng, how much material came in from outside.

As a result of those inquiries we were
not able to conme up with any information that
dermonstrated to us that there was not, in fact, a
support facility relationship between those two
structures.

W concluded after that detailed review
and formal |y comuni cated to Col or Comuni cati ons
in May of 1995 we found that they were, in fact,

appropriately considered one source based on a
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singl e industrial grouping.
Q Was the nature of the business
rel ati onship at Col or Communi cations, then, simlar
to the manufacturing operations at other facilities
where the agency has treated such facilities as one
source, Acne Steel being one exanpl e?
MR RUBIN:. My | have the question read back
pl ease?
MR LAYMAN: | beg your pardon?
MR RUBIN:. My | have the question read back?
HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Can we have the
question read back, please?
(Wher eupon, the record was read
by the reporter as requested.)
THE WTNESS: In terns of a functiona
relationship it is certainly simlar in genera
terns to Acne Steel and other facilities where
there are a series of steps involved fromtaking
the initial raw materials to nmaking a final product
for sale.
It is not as straightforward, | would say,
as Acne Steel because there are other naterials
that are being introduced at the 4000 West Fil nore

Street in ternms of bringing in paper that these
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col or chips are assenbled on top of; but it stil
does represent an integrated manufacturing
process.

BY MR LAYMAN:

Q Wul d the same be true in conparison with
the other exanple you referenced in your testinony,
that of Lone Star?

A Yes, it would. It would probably be nore
simlar to Lone Star. In the manufacture of cenent
there are sone other additives that are introduced
into cenent that are not present in the stone
brought over fromthe quarry.

Q Are you aware of any other col or-board
manuf acturers in the State of I11linois?

A No, | am not.

Q Are you fam liar with other business
operations in Illinois that performboth coating
and printing functions?

A Yes, | am There are a nunber of
packagi ng conmpanies in Illinois which involve both
coating and printing operations, and sonetines they
coat to produce the packaging nmaterial and then
subsequently print on top of that packagi ng

mat eri al
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So they are starting fromrolls of foi
or plastic and are then shipping out rolls of
packagi ng material for snack products like a Frito
Lay bag for potato chips.

They may al so slightly reverse the order
where they do their printing first and then put a
protective coating on top of the packaging to
protect the printing fromdeterioration or
abr asi on.

Q In your experience are you aware of
whet her these facilities comonly conduct their
operations at the sanme place of business?

A The exanples that |I'maware of operate
under a single premn ses, yes.

Q During the review, again, of the various
permt applications in 1994 of Col or
Comuni cations' facilities, what did the agency
| earn about the location of Col or Conmunications
facilities?

A Vll, in terns of the |ocation we |earned
that the locations of the two buildings were very
cl ose together.

They were not contiguous of a comon

definition; but they were certainly in the genera
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vicinity, only a block apart, neaning a comon
sense definition of adjacent.

Q Do you believe the agency's approach in
that context to be consistent with other cases
involving facilities that acted in the sane type
of relationship?

A W have not made that nany determ nations.
As | said, the Title 5 programis a new program
I'd say that to the extent those issues have come
up in new source review and PSD it's consistent.

A comon sense approach says that | ooking
at facilities within a couple of blocks certainly
nmeets the concept of being in close proximty to
each other particularly if there is a functiona
interrel ationship between those entities.

Q In assessing the issue of source
determ nation did the agency in Col or
Comuni cati ons' case seek gui dance from USEPA?

A Yes, we did seek guidance from USEPA

The issue of adjacency is not directly
addressed by USEPA' s new source review workshop
manual

W knew that there were potentia

enf orcenent issues out there, so we also did
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consult with USEPA to get their opinion on whether
these facilities should be considered as qualifying
as adjacent or, in fact, whether USEPA in sone
previ ous circunmstance had found simlar buildings
to actually constitute separate sources.

USEPA did not identify circunstances where
bui I dings this close together had ever been
consi dered separate sources

Q What ki nd of guidance did the agency
receive in response from USEPA?

A W received witten gui dance from USEPA

Q And what was the general gist of that
written gui dance?

A The witten gui dance addressed the
relevant criteria of the source definition and
indicated it did not appear that comon contro
or ownership was under question

So it addressed the idea of or the
criterion of common industrial grouping indicating
it was believed the two facilities would qualify as
a single activity and it's a support facility
versus primary activity; and it al so indicated that
interms of the issue of proximty and | ocation

USEPA believed that those facilities should be
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considered to be adjacent facilities, that the two
bui I di ngs shoul d be considered to be adjacent
bui | di ngs.

Q In subsequently issuing state permts to
Col or Communi cations how did the agency then treat
Col or Communi cations' facilities for purposes of
t he new source revi ew?

A As | said before, when | ooking at the
construction activity at 4000 West Filnore Street
facility, we |ooked at that construction activity
in conjunction with contenporaneous construction
activity at the 4242 West Filnore and | ooked at
those two buildings as a single source.

Q When Col or Conmmuni cations submtted its
CAAPP applications nost recently, what did the
agency | earn of how Col or Communi cati ons want ed
totreat its facilities in terms of source?

A Col or Conmuni cations subnmitted two
separate CAAPP applications, submtted one for the
4000 West Filnore Street facility and anot her CAAPP
application for the 4242 \Wst Filnore Street
facility. That was identified as part of the
agency's conpl et eness revi ew of those

appl i cati ons.
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G ven our historical review of those, the
source issue for those facilities within the |ast
year and a half, within the |last year we were aware
that was inconsistent with our determ nation, and
we communi cated that inconsistency to Col or
Communi cat i ons.

Q I will show you Respondent's Exhibit 1
identified by Bates No. 286 in the record as wel |
as Page 287. It's a letter dated Novenber 2, 1995,
again to the attention of M. Steve Wnter. |Is
that the letter that you were referring to in your
| ast answer?

A Yes, it is.

Q Woul d you say in sunming things up that
the source determ nation nade for purposes of the
CAAPP program was consi stent with the agency's
earlier permtting decisions for new source review?

A Yes, it certainly was. Qur determnation
for the CAAPP program in fact, reflected the
determ nation previously made for permtting Col or
Communi cati ons under the new source review
pr ogr am

MR LAYMAN. W have nothing further at this

poi nt .
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HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  All right. | think
for the benefit of the witness we will take a
five-mnute recess before cross exam nation

(Recess taken.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Let's proceed then

with the cross exanination of M. Ronaine.
CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR O BRI EN:

Q M. Romaine, 1'd like to ask you somne
questions first about sone of the other facilities
you discussed with M. Layman in your direct
exam nation this afternoon, and the first one would
be the Acne Steel plant. You are famliar with

that plant, you testified?

Yes, | did.
Q | believe you testified that there is a
rail line running between the Chicago and R verdal e

plants of the Acnme Steel Conpany; is that correct?

A There are rail lines running between two
facilities, that is correct. ['mnot sure if there
is one rail line or a nunber of different rai

connections between the two plants.
Q And it's also, | think, my understanding

that sonme of the material fromthe Chicago plant is
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transported via rail line to the Riverdale facility;
is that correct?

A That is correct.

Q Do you know who owns the rail line or rai
I'ines that connect the Chicago and R verdal e
facilities for Acrme Steel ?

A No, | do not.

Q Do you know who operates those rail |ines?

A No, | do not.

Q Do you know i f Acne Steel itself owns any
part of those rail l|ines?

A No, | do not.

Q Now, you also testified, | believe, that
the material going fromthe Chicago plant to the
Riverdale plant in Acme's case was hot iron. |Is
that a fair description of it?

A Yes, it is.

Q Does all the hot iron that is produced
at the Acnme Steel plant in Chicago then get
transferred to the Riverdale plant for additiona
processi ng?

A That is nmy understanding except for any
smal | amount of scrap netal that gets reprocessed

at the Chicago facility.
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Q Except for scrap netal that gets
reprocessed at Chi cago?

A That's correct.

Q VWhat woul d the circunstances of that be,
do you know?

A What | was thinking about is just residua
amounts of metal left in the tapping troths or
removed froma sl aggi ng operation that has cool ed,
solidified but then gets reintroduced or discharged
to the process.

Q So this would be material that was for
sone reason taken out of the process at Chicago and
either thrown away or reintroduced to the process?

A That's ny under st andi ng.

Q Now, | believe you al so nentioned an
oxygen pi pe connected to the Chicago and R verdal e
facilities of Acnme Steel. Do | have that right?

A Yes, you do

Q Wiat's the purpose of that oxygen pipe, if
you know?

A The purpose of that oxygen pipe is to
transfer oxygen fromone of the sites where the
oxygen is separated fromthe air at least to

transfer some of that oxygen to the other facility
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where there is a need for oxygen

Q Do you know who owns the oxygen pipe that
connects those two facilities?

A | believe it is owned by Acne.

Q Now, you testified that the agency nmade a
determ nation that the Riverdal e and Chicago plants
of Acne Steel were treated as one source; is that
correct?

A Yes.

Q Did Acne Steel request that those two
pl ants be treated as one source?

A Yes, they did.

Q I'"d like to ask you a coupl e questions now
about the Lone Star facility that you identified in
di scussions with M. Layman. You're famliar with
that facility, | take it?

Yes, | am

Q Now, as | understand that facility, there

is aquarry and materials fromthe quarry are

transferred to a cenent plant. Do | have that

right?
A Yes.
Q Do any materials fromthe quarry get

transferred to designations other than to Lone Star
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Cenent pl ant ?

A I'"'mnot aware that they are.

Q Now, | believe you testified with regard
to Lone Star that there is a conveyor belt that
connects the quarry to the cenent plant. Do | have
that right?

A Yes.

Q And | also think | understand that the
conveyor belt is used to transfer materials, rocks
and such, out of the quarry to the cenment plant; is
that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Do you know who owns the conveyor belt

that connects the quarry to the cenent plant?

A | believe that woul d be owned by Lone Star
Cenent .
Q Do you know i f Lone Star has an easenent

or sone rights over the property on which the
conveyor belt runs between the two facilities?

A | don't know that for a fact, but | would
assune that to be the case.

Q The property or the interval over which
this conveyor belt runs do you know if this

property is developed, if it has other buildings
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or activities on it?

A I don't recall.

Q Now, in Lone Star's case, again, you
i ndi cated that the agency has determi ned that the
cement plant and the quarry are treated as a single
source, correct?

A Yes.

Q Did Lone Star request that its quarry and
cenent plant be treated as a single source?

A | don't recall.

Q Do you recall if Lone Star objected to the
agency's determ nation that the quarry and the
cenent plant would be treated as a single source?

A | don't recall that either.

Q Goi ng back to Acne for a mnute, do you
know whet her the Chicago plant and the Riverdale
pl ant woul d both qualify independently as major
stationary sources under the applicable
regul ati ons?

A Yes, they woul d.

Q Now, |I'd like to ask you a couple
questions about the idea of support facility which
| believe you testified to with M. Layman. Do you

have nmy franme of reference there?
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Yes.

Q You said and | believe in your testinony
that the concept of a support facility as you're
aware of it was derived froma preanble to sone
regul ations and fromthe 1990 NSR wor kshop manual
Was that your testinony?

A Yes, it is.

Q Are you aware of any other sources for the
concept of support facility?

A I think the concept of support facility
has been al so touched on in various case-by-case
det erm nati ons.

It came up in a facility operated by --
two entities operated by General Mtors in Lansing,
M chigan. It cane up in, | believe, a power plant
in Wsconsin. There are a nunber of specific

i nstances where that topic has been di scussed.

Q I's the concept of support facility
included in the Illinois EPA -- | should not say
[11inois EPA

I's the concept of support facility
included in the Illinois regulations Title 35?
MR LAYMAN. Objection. | guess I'mnot quite

sure whether what's being asked is a question of
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| aw or exactly what.
MR O BRIEN. Maybe | can rephrase it
MR LAYMAN: Ckay.

BY MR O BRI EN:

Q Do the Illinois regulations at Title 35
contain as regul ations the reference to the support
facility that you described this afternoon in your
direct testinony?

A | don't believe that the term "support
facility" is specifically used; however, as those
regul ations were intended to carry out the federa
programs, | would contend that they build on
federal guidance in which the term "support
facility" is used to carry out that particular
criterion in the definition of "source."

Q So, in other words, that you believe that
federal guidance drives the interpretation that the
agency makes of Illinois regulations?

MR LAYMAN. Objection. Calls for a |lega
concl usi on.

MR OBRIEN. Well, I think it's as the agency
is applying it.

MR LAYMAN. The question asked is whether the

federal law drives a state agency. | think that's
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a question of |aw

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: The question was
whet her federal guidance drives the state
interpretation of state regulations, | believe.

MR OBRIEN. | think that's what I'mtrying to
ask.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: M. Ronmi ne has been
testifying as to the basis for decisions that he
has nmade in permit decisions, and so | amgoing to
overrul e the objection and request that M. Ronaine
answer to the best of his ability.

THE WTNESS: |'mnot sure what you nmean by the
term"drive."

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Woul d you want to
rephrase the question, Counsel?

MR OBREN "Il try.

BY MR- O BRI EN

Q Does the federal guidance that you
referred to influence or help the agency nake
determ nations of howto interpret its own air
regul ati ons?

A Yes, it does.

Q Do you know i f the concept of support

facility that we've discussed is contained in any
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of the federal regul ations that have been adopted
under Part 707

M5. SAWER: (bjection. | think that calls for
a legal conclusion also if you're asking himif the
concept is reflected in the regul ati ons.

MR O BRI EN. Maybe | can ask it this way and
fix the objection.

BY MR O BRI EN:

Q Do you know if the definition of support
facility that you've been discussing this afternoon
is included in the federal regulations that have
been adopted under Part 707

A The Federal Part 70 regul ati ons which
woul d base the Title 5 on do not include the
definition of support facility.

Q Now, |I'd Iike to pose a hypothetica
question. It has to do with this concept of
support facility.

In the hypothetical question you'd have
two manufacturing buildings A and B. They are
under common ownershi p and control, and the out put
of Building A 100 percent of that output is
transferred to Building B for additional processing

or manufacturi ng.

126
McCORKLE COURT REPORTI NG | NC
CH CAGO, ILLINOS - (312) 263-0052



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

In that instance if Building A and
Building B were 50 mles apart, would the agency
consider those two facilities as one source under
the regul ati ons?

A Wth that hypothetical exanple | don't
bel i eve that the agency woul d consider those two
facilities to be a single source given the extent
of geographi c separation between the two entities.

Q How about if you change it to 25 mles
apart?

A I think | would stick with the sane
answer. One of the things that crops up in the
back of my mind is one of the exanples in the
USEPA' s preanbl e, the PSD regul ati ons and the
term nol ogy that tal ks about an exanple that was
posed to comrents asking a question about a mne
and a power plant that were separated by 20 mles

and connected by a rail line.

So | have a line of demarcation that woul d

suggest that entities that are separated by nore
than 20 miles that is such a distance that they
woul d be consi dered separate sources.

Q That brings up anot her question. Let's

say you had that situation you just referred to
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where those facilities were 20 mles apart; and,
again, let's assune they are support facilities,
as |'ve indicated. 100 percent of the -- in ny
hypot heti cal 100 percent of the output of one goes
to the other for nore processing.

And what if they were 20 nmiles apart, but
there wasn't a rail line connecting them There
wasn't any connection via conveyor belt or a rai
line or any other kind of connection.

In that instance what kind of
determ nation would the agency nake?

A I think still going back to that
particul ar gui dance USEPA has gi ven us one
benchmark that says if things are separated by 20
mles they would not consider themto be in close
proximty, one would consider those entities to be
separ at e sources

Q So, in other words, 20 niles would be --
inthe way you're interpreting the agency or the
USEPA' s exanple, 20 nmiles apart facilities could be
consi dered adj acent; is that correct?

A No. |'m saying exactly the opposite.

That USEPA has given us one piece of guidance in

the preanble that indicates that entities 20 mles
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apart would not be considered part of a single
source; and so that | believe the agency in this
type of hypothetical exanple would turn to that
particul ar gui dance and conclude that entities that
are 20 mles apart would be consi dered separate
sour ces.

Q I msunderstood that. | thought you said
that those were considered one source, and
apol ogi ze. So | m sunderstood you.

So just to nake sure | have the record
clear, the USEPA s gui dance suggests that
facilities located 20 nmiles apart and connected by
arail line indicates that those facilities should
be treated as separate sources; is that correct?

A That was a hypothetical that was posed to
USEPA, and ny recollection is that they said those
shoul d be separate.

Q Can you tell us as you sit here in using
and going back to ny hypothetical of two buil dings
under common control, one providing all its
materials to the other for additional production
at what point do they becone close enough to be
considered a single source? |s there a |line of

denmar cati on?
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MR. LAYMAN. (Objection. Calls for specul ation,
and we will increasingly get into an area of
specul ation as we try to narrow the nile nmarker
down from20 miles to in this case and rel evant
only to this case less than a mle

MR OBREN. Wll, | think it's relevant how
we' ve heard testinony from M. Ronaine as to how
the regul ations are applied by the agency; and
think it's fair to inquire as to what the
application would be of a situation that is
sonewhat different than the one that is presented
her e.

MR LAYMAN:  Well, if anything, M. Romaine's
testinony would illustrate that these determ nations
are made on a case-by-case basis and invol ve any
nunber of different factors.

MR O BRI EN. | understand that that's probably
-- that may be what M. Ronmine's testinony would
be; but, if that is the case, let's et himtestify
toit.

If he says there is no |line of
denmarcation, he can say that. |f he knows where
there is one, he can say that.

W just would Iike to have sonething for
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the record to indicate what the agency's position
is on this issue.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: |'m going to sustain
the objection with respect to this particul ar
question; however, | aminterested in exploring
with the witness further the basis for decisions on
this issue. | think the question was a little too
far fromthe facts in our present situation
BY MR O BRI EN:

Q Wth that in mnd, et me ask a sonewhat
di fferent hypotheti cal

Let's assune we had a situation where,
again, we had two facilities A and B; and, again,
they are owned by the sanme conpany so they are
under conmon contr ol

And in this instance they are sitting on
properties that are contiguous to each other. They
share a comon boundary. So they are right next
door.

In this hypothetical there is absolutely
no support relationship; that is, none of the
products or production fromFacility A go to
Facility B or vice versa; and in this instance

these two facilities have a different SIC code.
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Whul d the agency consi der these two

facilities to constitute one source or

sources?

A G ven the hypot hetica

were presented, we would consider those to be

separate sources for

purposes and for the Title 5 definition of

separ at e

ci rcunst ances t hat

PSD and new source revi ew

"source." Based on those definitions they woul d

fail on having a conmon major industria

Q So it would be your belief that

i nstance those facilities because they did not

gr oupi ng.
in that

support each other would not share a common mgj or

i ndustrial grouping; is that

A No.

Q Ckay. What is the

conclusion that in that inst

correct?

basis for your

ance those two

facilities woul d not share a nmajor industria

groupi ng?

A That was the hypotheti cal

gave to ne.

Q That's correct.

that badly. Let ne go back

If two facilities have no support

relationship to each ot her,

is the anal ysis of
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whet her they are a single major industrial grouping
determ ned solely by virtue of their standard
i ndustrial classifications?

A For this hypothetical exanple --

Q Sure.

A -- where criteria of conmon ownership is
satisfied and criteria for comon proximty is
satisfied?

Q (M. OBrien nodded head up and down.)

A | believe that would be the case. |'m
trying to think of an exanple where |'ve run across
it as you' ve described it.

The exanple that | go back to that type of
situation is Dow Chemcal. Dowin Joliet they own
a very large piece of property.

On that piece of property they have a
chem cal production facility in one area, another
corner they have a terminal that is involved in
distribution of materials, and finally they have a
pl astic product production facility.

There is not -- between those plants they
operate essentially independently without
rel ationship; and as to new source review and PSD

we woul d, in fact, consider those to be separate
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sour ces.

Q So in the instance of Dow Chem cal -- |
want to make sure | have the facts straight on that
-- are those three facilities you nentioned a
chem cal production facility, a plastic production
facility and a termnal, are they | ocated on
conti guous or adjacent properties?

A Yes, they are.

Q And because there is no support
rel ati onship among those three the agency treats
those as separate sources; is that correct?

A W woul d treat them as separate sources
for PSD and new source review purposes as rel ated
to Title 5.

| qualify it because under the hazardous
air pollutant criteria definition of "source" it
woul d still be a single source.

Q And why woul d that be under the hazardous
air pollutant criteria?

A There is a different definition for
stationary source under hazardous air pollutant
whi ch does not include comon industrial activity.
That particular criteria was dropped out.

For that purpose under Title 5 there are
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only two criteria, common ownership of control and
general proximty.
Q Thanks. That clears it up.

W talked a little bit about how the
agency interprets adjacent -- or maybe the way to
ask it is this.

How far apart nust two facilities be to be
no | onger adjacent as the agency interprets that
tern®

MR LAYMAN: Objection on the sane ground that
we had previously objected for the reason that it
cones down again to a question of how far is far
enough and how cl ose is close enough. It
inherently calls for specul ation

MR OBRIEN. It calls for -- in this case
what |I'masking for is it calls for the way the
agency i s applying the regulations that are inposed
upon the manufacturer and conmunity, and the idea
is to see how the agency exercises its discretion
or its interpretation of these regul ations.

And | just wanted -- | think we discussed
earlier when we had an objection the idea of how
the agency treats other facilities.

The purpose of this questionis to find
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out how the agency treats facilities that are
separated by distances that are different than the
one we have in the instant case.

MR. LAYMAN: Is this a hypothetical; or is it,
in fact, designed to get at cases where the agency
has treated facilities to be adjacent under or
within this distance or --

MR OBRIEN. M. Rubin whispered in ny ear
but he's right. W're asking if the agency has a
policy as to how far apart two facilities must be
to be considered no | onger adjacent.

M5. SAWER | think he's already answered
t hat .

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: | am going to
sustain the objection based on the way the question
was originally phrased.

I think, though, that, Counsel, could you
expl ore your interest in the definition used by the
agency for the word "adjacent" by rephrasing your
questions in this area? The question was too
br oad.

MR OBREN [I'Il try it this way.
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BY MR O BRI EN:

Q Can you tell us how the agency anal yzes
the question of whether facilities are considered
adj acent ?

A If that is the relevant criteria for
investigation, it would be | ooked at on a
case-by-case basis |looking at the two entities,
how far apart they are, what the relationship is
between the two entities in ternms of their
function, how they relate together, how ot her
sim |l ar businesses conduct their operation, what
are the nature of the physical connections that
exi st between the facilities, what are the nature
of the nonphysical connections of the facilities.

W' d be open to any -- beyond those if
there are other factors that sonebody identified,
it would be a case-by-case basis.

Q So is it fair to say that factors other
than distance go into the agency's determ nation
of whether two facilities are adjacent?

A Yes. Cdearly we've indicated that the
nature of any physical connection between the
two facilities is considered, the nature of the

obstacl es perhaps and then the functiona
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rel ati onship between the two entities.

Q In other words, would the fact that the
two facilities had what nay be construed as a
support facility relationship play a role in
determ ning whether facilities are considered
adj acent ?

A It could, yes.

MR OBRIEN If | could take just a m nute.

(Pause.)

MR O BRI EN. Just a couple nore.
BY MR- O BRI EN

Q Does the agency have any witten docunent
that defines how close facilities have to be to be
consi dered adj acent that's avail able for guidance?

A W have no prepared docunent of that
type. Any guidance we have woul d be on a
case-by-case basis to an individual source for a
particul ar circunstance.

Q So in each instance where this issue
arises it's going to be up to the discretion of
t he agency whether the facilities are considered
adj acent or not?

A | would not use the term "discretion."”

It's part of the decision that has to be nade for

138
McCORKLE COURT REPORTI NG | NC
CH CAGO, ILLINOS - (312) 263-0052



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

permitting in that we have to use the authority
granted to us by the act to decide, in fact,
whet her they have conplied with the particul ar
regul ati ons.

Q But there is no distance benchmark in
ternms of nunber of feet or mles that is applied to
the anal ysis of that question; is that correct?

A We have not established such a benchnark
at this point beyond the 20 mles that | can point
to in the USEPA s preanble.

MR OBREN That's all | have. Thanks.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: | have a coupl e
questions nyself that canme to ny mnd during
M. Romaine's testinmony that | thought | mght ask
for the board, and should I do that now?

MR LAYMAN: | don't care as long as | have an
opportunity to redirect.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Ckay.

EXAM NATI ON
BY HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON

Q Sonme of these might be sonmewhat
repetitive; but they do go to the foundation,
think, on the basis for the decision that you are

tal ki ng about making in these kinds of situations.
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When you stated that when you're | ooking
at the definition of "source" you are | ooking at
| ocation, proximty, supervision and contro
besi des what you call functional criteria, | was
curious about your use of the word "proximty." 1Is
the word "proximty" in the rules and regul ations
somewher e?

A No, it is not.

Q Ckay.

A The term"proximty" is used in USEPA' s
preanble, but that's the term| was using as an
unbrella termfor the terns "contiguous" and
"adj acent."

Q Ckay. You made reference to definitions
of the word "source" that are effective in
different prograns; and | amunfamliar with the
names of the different prograns that woul d have
different definitions of source and what definition
woul d be applicable to this specific permt, and it
may be sinply because | have not gone into depth in
the record.

But could you identify the permt type
that's the programdefinition of "source" that

applies in this case?
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A In this case we nmade a conpl et eness
determ nati on under the CAAPP program Illinois'
Clean Air Act Permt Program

The definition that we specifically point

to for that program would be the definition of
"stationary source" under Section 39.5 of the
act .

Q Ckay, thanks. So, when you were referring
to the type of review you would do in classifying a
facility in terns of the definition of "source" and
you referred to a pernmit for a new source, is that
the type of pernit review that you were doing in
this case?

A That was the type of permt review we
were doing back in April and May of '95 for Col or
Communi cat i ons.

So it was not the basis for the

determ nation in Novenber of '95 on the Clean Air
Act Permt Prograns, but it was the basis of a
prior determ nation that we believed should al so
be reflected in the Clean Air Act Permt Program
permt application

Q You nade reference to, | believe, a case

decision entitled Al abanma Power ?
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A That's correct.

Q Was that case the same type of permt
application and subject to the same | aws as the
petitioner's operations are in the current permt
appeal , do you know?

A No, it was not. The Al abana Power case
was an appeal of USEPA's rul e making on the
prevention of significant deterioration rules and
their nonattai nment area rules. So it was an
appeal of a rule making. It was not an appeal of
actions pursuant to a rule.

Q And, when you referred to Acne Stee

permts that identify it as a single source, do you

happen to know i f any of those permts that were
referenced are currently of concern in open cases
before the Pollution Control Board or do you just
happen to know?

A | don't believe so. |'mnot aware that
they are.

Q And then the sane for Lone Star. Do you
happen to know if the Lone Star pernmits are the
subj ect of any current open case?

A | don't believe they are.

Q Now, you made general references to
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gui dance with respect to the nmeaning of the word
"adj acent” and the way in which you use it in
deci si ons.

However, are there any witten guidelines
that are currently in the agency record that we
have here and/or are there other identified witten
docunents that include any statenents related to
the definition of "adjacent" by USEPA or |EPA that
woul d be of assistance to the board?

A It certainly would be appropriate if the
board wanted to | ook at the new source review
wor kshop manual as the nost definitive conpanion
of USEPA interpretations and gui dance with respect
to new source review.

There may be sonme other determnations
that are relevant. Perhaps M. VanMersbergen can
di scuss them | ater when he's on direct.

Q You use the word "contiguous" to describe
facilities that are not contiguous in the genera
under standi ng of the word as being not next to one
anot her physically.

But, when | look at the section definition
on "source" at 211.6130, the word "contiguous" is

used only with respect to clarifying industria
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groupi ngs and how t hey woul d be coded.

So is the word "contiguous"” a word that
you al so are using, then, to nodify the word
"adj acent"?

A I'"'mnot sure what you are referring to
I was not using the word "contiguous" to nodify the
word "adjacent."

I was using the word as found in the
rules to nmy recollection in terns of the proximty
criteria for defining "source."

The definitions do not use the word
"proximty." They use the term "contiguous" or
"adj acent."

Q And, when you referred to USEPA gui dance
that you use in making these decisions, is that
docunent would that be in the formof rules and
regul ations; or is your reference solely to the new
source review guidelines that you nentioned; or is
there sone other material that you could help us or
that you have know edge of that you could refer for
t he board?

MR LAYMAN: If | may ask for a clarification
| think there were two types of guidance that were

di scussed in M. Romaine's testinony. One guidance
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docunent from USEPA, and then two specific guidance
or recomrendations via letters and correspondence
fromUSEPA. You're referring to guidance
docunent s?

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Wl |, the word he
used, | believe, was "guidance."
BY HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON

Q And so |'mwondering if those are in the
formof documents of general applicability; or, if
they are in the formof docunments on specific
cases, then |'mjust wondering if you could give
us sone detail on that; or, if there are sone
gui del i nes of general applicability, you could
| et us know if you know of them

A The USEPA' s preanbl e certainly di scusses
the issue of proximty, so that's a preanble to
their adoption of PSD and new source review rul es
back in 1980. That's a published docunent.

The next docunment |'d refer the board to
is the new source revi ew workshop manual. That is
al so a docunent that has been published by USEPA
and wi dely dissem nated by themas a standard
reference tool, | think, for pernittees,

consultants and permitting authorities.
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Then the ot her docunments would be, 1'd
say, precedent type docunents referring to specific
cases.

I"'mnot sure which docunents of those are
in the record as conpared to the interrogatory
response.

There may be additional docunents that we
have only provided to Col or Conmuni cati ons as part
of the interrogatories that we mght be able to
provide to the board.

MR LAYMAN: As far as the record is concerned,
there's the two letters of correspondence from
USEPA and attached to one of those letters was the
General Mdtors determnation that had previously
been made by USEPA. That's all that's contained
in the admnistrative record at this point.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: COkay. Could we
identify the page nunbers for the record now or
| ater?

MR LAYMAN: Sure. Page 2 is a letter dated
February 2, 1995. Pages 2 and 3 are that letter,
| shoul d say.

Page 4 is the attached determination. In

fact, Pages 4 through 4A, Page 5 and 5A are the
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determination letters attached to USEPA's |etter
to the agency.

Those determination |letters both address
the issue of General Mtors and its Lansing,
M chigan facilities. The other USEPA
correspondence dated March 24, 1995, is found
at Bates No 7.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Ckay, thank you.

MR LAYMAN. Redirect?

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  (Hearing O ficer
Edvenson nodded head up and down.)

MR LAYMAN. Real briefly.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q Is it fair to say that one mmjor factor
consi dered by the agency in determ ning that Col or
Comuni cations' facilities were adjacent or
contiguous in this case was, in fact, the close
| ocation of the two facilities at the 4000 and
4242 \West Fi |l nore?

A Yes, it was. They were |located just a
bl ock apart. A block apart is not very far in an
urban area

Q Is it also fair to say that the

147
McCORKLE COURT REPORTI NG | NC
CH CAGO, ILLINOS - (312) 263-0052



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

i nt erdependency of the facilities, the way in which
they acted as one or encountered with each other
was al so inmportant in this context?

A Yes, it was.

MR LAYMAN. That's all 1 have.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: |s there any
recross?

MR OBRIEN. (M. OBrien shook head back and
forth.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Al right. Thank
you very nmuch, M. Ronaine.

THE W TNESS: No probl em

(Wtness excused.)

MR LAYMAN: The agency will call its next
witness M. Ronald VanMersbergen.

MR OBRIEN. Can we go off the record for a
mnute in terns of scheduling?

MR LAYMAN: Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: O f the record.

(Wher eupon, di scussion was had

of f the record.)

* * * * *
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RONALD VanMERSBERGEN,
called as a witness herein, having been first duly
sworn, was exam ned and testified as foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q Woul d you pl ease restate your name for the
record?

A My name is Ronal d VanMersbergen.

Q And what is your occupation,

M. VanMer sber gen?

A I'"man engineer with the U S.
Envi ronment al Protection Agency.

Q Coul d you give us a general idea as to
your education after high school ?

A | graduated from University of M chigan
with a bachelor's degree in civil engineering. |
continued at the same university with a master's
degree in sanitary engineering.

I worked for EPA or for a predecessor of
EPA for a couple of years. | went to Penn State
University to get a degree in air pollution control

adm ni stration.

I've taken a nunber of courses with EPA in

ny earlier career related to air pollution control
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and managemnent .

Q When did you become enpl oyed by the United
States Environnmental Protection Agency?

A I had been working for either EPA or its
predecessor since 1963 after graduation with a
master's degree and continued with the agency unti
about 1972.

Took a year and a half off to work with
private industry devel oping air pollution contro
equi prmrent and doi ng sone consul ting.

Then in 1974 or early '74 rejoined EPA
at that time it was EPA; and |'ve worked with the
agency since that tinme either in permtting or
either in soot devel opnent for a couple of years.

And then in 1976 -- approximately 1976
focused in on new source review permtting and
have been involved in sone aspect of permtting
continually since that tine.

Q What current position do you hold for
USEPA?

A I"mcurrently recogni zed as a nationa
expert in air permtting.

Q What ki nd of responsibilities are entail ed

with that position?
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A I'"mexpected to assist the agency in
maki ng national policy, assist the agency in
devel opi ng regul ati ons, review ng regul ations
relating to permtting.

| expect to speak on behalf of the agency
in areas; receiving questions fromindustry
consultants, universities, law firms, other federa
agencies, with respect to air permtting.

MR LAYMAN: Before we go any further and
before | forget | would at this point ask that
M. VanMersbergen's resune be nmarked and, in fact,
accepted into evidence.

BY MR LAYMAN:

Q This is, in fact, a copy of your resune?

A That's correct.

MR LAYMAN. That will be marked, again, |I'm
sorry, as Respondent's Exhibit 3, | believe.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Yes, Respondent's
Exhibit 3. |Is there any objection to the
introduction of this?

MR O BRIEN:  No.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Al right.

(Wher eupon, docunent so offered

was mar ked and received in
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evi dence as Respondent's Exhi bit
No. 3.)
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q CGoi ng back to your official title and
responsibility for USEPA, national expert in
permtting matters inplies nore than just an
expert for Region 5; is that correct?

A That's correct. Wen EPA has to or feels
obligated to make policy decisions or change
directions, I'minvolved in sone of those types
of activities.

For exanple, | have been a nmenber of the
air pollution control -- or, excuse ne, air
pol lution advi sory subconm ttee on reeval uating the
construction permt regulations; participated in
t hat .

I"mcurrently involved in what is called
the CSI, common sense initiative program which the
current adm ssion wishes to work with industry.
['minvolved in the autonotive sector in that
aspect.

I get involved in other task force dealing
with devel opi ng gui dance. For exanple, |

participated in a task force that devel oped the new
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source revi ew workshop manual that was referred to
earlier.
Those types of things.

Q How many ot her national experts are there
enpl oyed by USEPA for air permt matters besides
yoursel f?

A There is one expert in North Carolina that
works directly in our headquarters office, and
there is a person in one other region that has a
very simlar responsibility at the sane grade | eve
that his title is just slightly different. There
woul d be three of us.

Q As part of your work responsibilities in
that position have you becone famliar with many of
the Cean Air Act programs and requirenents?

A That's correct, | have, although |I do not
claima great deal of famliarity and expertise
with respect to the autonotive program

Q Are you famliar, then, with the federa
new source revi ew requirenents for PSD?

A That's correct, | am

Q How are you famliar? |In other words, how
do you work with that in your current position?

A | have assisted in the very early years
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reviewing the initial PSD regul ations that are the
basis for the current program That woul d be the

August 1980 regul ations. Assisted in devel opnent

of those regul ations.

Partici pated and then del egating that
programto various state agenci es.

Assisting states in devel oping their own
regulations if they so choose to in review ng those
regul ati ons for approval or disapproval.

What | do is participate in training
programs -- national training prograns that nay be
sponsored by various organizations explaining these
regul ations. | may have sone part in that or
devel op training schools for these prograns.

More towards the nmundane | do paperwork or
| train people in our owmn office. | have revi ewed
permts that may cone into our office for
over si ght.

| have sonme period of tine assisted or
reviewed or audited, | would say, state permtting
programs to see whether they had procedures that
woul d result in inplenenting pernmt decisions that
woul d be consistent with the national policy.

Q Wien you say you've participated in
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semnars, | take it you nmean both attended as well
as conduct; is that correct?

A Well, primarily conducting the sem nars.

Q You did do that?

A W' ve conducted senminars in each one of
the Region 5 states. Then there would be sem nars
-- two senminars that were put on by the Nationa
Air Pollution Control -- well, the National Air &
Wast e Managenent Associ ation sponsored sem nars.
Participated in instruction at those sem nars.

Q Are you also famliar with the Clean Air

Act federal nonattai nnent area new source revi ew

progr anf
A That's correct, | am
Q How are you famliar with that?

A That program and the PSD program have nany
simlarities in Region 5 where we are expecting
states to develop regulations to neet the d ean
Air Act requirenments and assist in reviewng or
participate in overseeing the review of the
devel opment of these regulations, and then the
final approval or disapproval of these regulations
at the state program

And, then again, in the oversight of
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permits that may emanate fromthese prograns nopst
states have arrangenents with us where we receive
copi es of mmjor source permts prior to or during
the public coment period.

We | ook at these permits such that we
can be assured that decisions are consistent with
nati onal policy.

This is sonmething that EPA wants to do
is try to make sure that these regul ations are
interpreted at a consistent manner across the
nation so that there is no conpetitive advantage
of one over another because of inconsistent
interpretations, so part of ny responsibility is

to look at permts to |look for this.

Q Have you, in fact, been involved with this

type of oversight for the Illinois new source
revi ew nonattai nment area progran?

A That's correct, | have.

Q Have you al so been involved with that type

of oversight for the federally del egated PSD
programto Illinois?

A That's correct.

Q And why is it that that role or what

pur poses, | should say, does that role serve, do
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you believe, in that new source review context?

A It serves two purposes. One purpose is to
make sure that the state is famliar with what the
federal regulations are, and in sone cases we can
even assist the state in managing a state program
by knowi ng what goes on in other -- what is
happeni ng in other states.

The other purpose is to assure that the
federal regulations are consistently applied in
this country.

Q Are you famliar in light of your present
responsibilities with the dean Air Act federa
permtting programunder Title 5?

A That's correct.

Q Are you also famliar with USEPA's Part 70

federal rules?

A That's correct.
Q Have you had a role or assistance, if you
will, in devel oping those regul ations?

A Early in 1990 when the Cean Air Act was
passed | spent a ten-week period in North Carolina
working with the group that was devel opi ng t hese
regul ations, participated in the initial

structuring of these regs during that particular
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time. That was a full-time activity for that
ten-week peri od.

Since that time | have participated in
revi ewi ng proposed anendnents to those regul ati ons
and assisting in interpretations of policy and
trying to guide the national policy in inplenmenting
this Part 70 regs.

Q Are you famliar with the Illinois Title 5
programas it has been approved by USEPA?

A To a degree I'mfamliar with it. One of
our other individuals reviewed it underneath ny
oversight. | did not read the full rule nyself.
Just parts here and there where there were
guestions as to whether or not it was consistent
with the federal regs.

Q Have you assisted Illinois as well as
other states in addressing relevant or recent CAAPP
permtting issues since its enactnent?

A When questions cone up with respect to the
CAAPP programthat the state feels that they would
like to have a federal input, | participate in
t hat .

And the reason for that is that the state

CAAPP programis intended to neet the federal C ean
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Air Act requirenments and i nasnuch as a regul ation
cannot cover every aspect of managi ng the program
then we provide an interpretation to rul es because
we are trying to make sure that what Congress has
i nt ended, passing that nessage from what Congress
has intended and the courts interpret down to the
state as the state tries to inplenment the intent of
Congress. That is our concern, and that's why we
| ook at these pernmits and answer policy questions.

Q G ven your experience and, in fact, from
sone of your testinony you are, then, famliar with
stationary source definitions for both the PSD and
the nonattai nment area NSR, new source revi ew
progr anf

A That's correct.

Q Wiat do the definitions generally provide?

A The definition of "mgjor source" for
nonattai nnent PSD came fromthe Cean Air Act and
have had maj or inpact upon that definition as a
result of the Al abama Power case which was referred
to earlier in the testinony.

In the Al abama Power case the court

instructed EPA to wite regs or give a nore precise

definition of what a source is between the criteria
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of common sense industrial grouping and as one
criteria.

Anot her woul d be the assurance that the
pur pose of PSD would be met; and then, thirdly, to
make sure that as we group activities for a major
source that we didn't aggregate sonething in too
broad a sense

So with that instruction of Congress we
devel oped for a regul ation pronul gated August 7,
1980, defining major source or its sister
definition of a building structure and facility.

In that definition we tried to inplenent
what Congress has intended by comobn sense
i ndustrial grouping by setting up criteria -- broad
criteria in terms of how we define a source that
had to be for a conmon sense industrial grouping.

W were trying to ook at SIC code and
its support facilities as defined in our regs
common control and adj acent, contiguous piece of
property.

So that's how that definition occurred,
and that's the definition with respect to PSD and
nonattai nment. As we pointed out earlier, Title 5

is just a bit broader.
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Q Now, you are famliar with Title 5
definition of "source" as well?

A That's correct.

Q Are there any significant differences
bet ween source definition fromone programto the
ot her?

A In the Title 5 programthe Congress
directly defines "source" without using the SIC
code as distinguishing features for toxic materials
resulting in situations where you coul d have
different types of activity that one woul dn't
consi der the same SIC code, but the toxic materials
fromboth those activities would be grouped
together to determ ne whether or not a mmjor source
met the em ssion threshold level. That's the
primary difference.

Q Ckay. In the context of how these
i ssues arise to your attention, how are source
determ nations generally made by USEPA?

A Wien we make these determ nations, we,
first of all, go to the regulation to determ ne
what the regulation may obviously say; and, if
it's not clear in the situation, then we depend

upon previous policy determ nations that have
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been nade.

These policy determ nations are brought
together in a three-volune manual that EPA has that
is publicly avail abl e.

These determ nations are
in forms of letters nost frequently or possibly
menos. Those policy determ nations nost of them
are on an electronic bulletin board that EPA has.

And then in the third area we have a
manual that we have brought together sunmmarizing
these determi nations called the new source revi ew
wor kshop manual

Now, in making a determ nation, we wll
see whether or not -- see what has been done with
previous determ nations, okay? It's tried to keep
within those guidelines.

If we have situations that arise that are
outside that determ nation, then what we woul d do
is bring the problemto our -- our general counse
in Washington woul d be a participant, our office
enforcenment a participant and then the program
peopl e three headquarters groups then as well as
regional people bringing in the regional experts

on these questions and try to determ ne what a
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nati onal policy should be.

Q Regarding the criteria of a source
definition for major industrial groupings, what
does USEPA first generally look at in applying that
definition to a particular set of facts?

A W take a look at the -- well, first of
all, we look at three najor criteria.

The common control of which ownership is
t he biggest factor, but there can be contractua
arrangenments that provide control

W |l ook at the activity that's occurring
at the source; and, if it comes within -- the
activities they fall within the first two-digit
SI C code, we generally will let that sit at that
| evel

If there are activities that expand beyond
the SIC code, we will |ook to see whether or not
these activities are support activities.

Support activity, then, would be an
activity that is an activity engaged in or one of
the functions that occur at a source such that we
general ly generate a principal product.

That could be a couple of different SIC

codes that make contribution; but, if we end up
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maki ng a principal product, we | ook at those
activities and make that principal product.

We try to group these activities to see
whet her or not we have a -- in terns of conmon
sense definition whether or not they occur in an
adj acent or contiguous area.

The Cean Air Act refers to a contiguous
area in sone places. It's alittle -- 1 admt it's
alittle confusing in sone aspects.

But we'll take a | ook at adjacent and
contiguous locations; and, if the activities occur
in the proximty neighborhood, then we will say
this is the same source, and we will nake those
det erm nati ons based upon earlier determ nations
such that we have a consi stency.

There is sonme federal guidance as referred
to earlier. |If something is 20 miles apart, we
woul d say that is too far. W have nade
determ nations at |esser distances that we fee
fairly confortable with

Q Can you describe for us an exanple
illustrating perhaps what a support facility is?
HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:.  Coul d you speak up

alittle nore --
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MR, LAYMAN: ['msorry.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON. -- for the benefit of
others in attendance?

MR LAYMAN: Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Thank you, both of
you.

THE W TNESS: A support facility would either
generate a subproduct or provide some kind of
service that is necessary in manufacturing or
assenbling or producing a final principal product.

For exanple, a support facility mght be
a power plant which has a conpletely different SIC
code, a conpletely different set of functions, than
a chemical plant; but the power plant obviously is
supporting the chemical plant to make a principa
product. That would be a support facility.

So we take a |l ook at what the principa
product is, is there a relationship, a functiona
tie, between the emtting activity that we're
concerned about and the principal product to get
a common sense definition of the pollutant emtting

activities.
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BY MR LAYMAN:

Q Is there any comonly applied threshold
for determ ning whether one facility is a support
facility for another?

A Yes. Let's say the power plant as an
example. |If there were a power plant at an
industrial site and it gave one-third of its
energy to three different plants evenly, we'd say
that's not a support facility.

But, if it had at |east 50 percent of its
energy production donated to one activity, then
we'd say this is a support facility. So 50 percent
woul d be the cutoff that federal gui dance woul d
use.

Q And is this rule as it relates to support
facilities sonething that's comonly applied by
USEPA?

A This is in our federal guidance preanble
that preceded the August 7, 1980, regul ations for
PSD and for nonattainment; and so it's applied, and

we have been applying it for the last 15 or 16

years.
Q | take it it's not uncomon then --
A No, it's not uncommon at all
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Q -- to be presented?

A As a matter of fact, | don't think we've
had any determ nations recently on this issue
because it's fairly well accepted as a support
facility.

Q As to the source definition criteria for
| ocation that of adjacency and contiguous, what
wi |l USEPA generally |l ook at in any given case?

A You have to recognize that the basis for
why we cone to these three regulatory criteria
that is a common ownership adjacency as well as the
activity that's engaged in, we're trying to group
sources together or Congress intended us to group
sources together; and the original basis for this
or one of the domnating basis for this is try to
relate this to air quality inpact and activities
that could be brought together that may have a
simlar inpact in sone area was inportant to us.

So much of this came out of the air when
we were pressing on a particular matter and sul fur
di oxi de. That gave us sone clues as to where we
wer e headed.

So the adjacency issue, then, may have

sone inpact there at least in our traditiona
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manner of | ooking at sources, and in an effort to
keep consistent we've carried that forward.

As we | ook at these three type of
criteria, we are still trying to make a comon
source or common sense groupi ng of em ssion
activities. Common sense grouping. That's the
gui des the court gave us.

And so we recogni ze that there are
case-by-case determinations, and not every -- a
case-by-case determ nation goes beyond j ust
di st ances.

It's not very difficult for us to get
a ruler out and measure distances. W don't have
to need case-by-case determ nations.

W bring in sone other factors we believe
are appropriate, and that is some of the functiona
relationships at an activity to help us nake a
det erm nati on.

W' ve made sone determinations, and with
that in mnd we take a look at the other activities
-- the functional relationship, | should say, of
the activities occurring at the facilities in
questi on.

Q It is possible, | take it fromthe way you
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answered the |l ast question, that activities can be
| ocated at a different site or --
A Excuse ne?
Q It is possible that activities can be
| ocated separately or separated by distance and yet
still treated as one source?
A I'"mpresuning you say is it possible that
activities may be on properties that don't have
t ouchi ng boundari es?
Q Correct.
A That is very frequently the case. That's
a very comon situation.
Quite frequently we will have separate
pi eces of property that are separated by public
right-of-ways, possibly by a private railroad. So
that's private property that woul d separate pieces
of property.
There may be ot her geographic features
like rivers or streans that m ght separate two
pi eces of property.
But as long as these activities are
grouped functionally and are reasonably cl ose, then
we call that a source -- single source

Q Those factors that you have just described
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are those fairly comon or characteristic of a
I ong-1ine operation?
A Ch, yes. That's correct. That's correct.
Q Are you aware of any cases invol ving
ei ther PSD or nonattai nment area new source review
wher e USEPA has consi dered separate buil di ngs or
facilities to be one source even though they were
separ at ed by some di stance?
A Yes, | am
Q Can you give us one such exanpl e?
A One such exanpl e, okay, fine.

General Mdtors in Lansing, Mchigan is a
situation where there are two activities dealing
with the generation of a -- | believe it's an
O dsmobil e where painting activities occur at two
different |ocations separated by a distance of
close to three-quarters of a mle

And we've indicated that that is a single
source because of the long line; that is, a
continuation of making a subproduct into a fina
product. That's the furthest distance that | have
been personally involved in.

And then there are nunerous ot her

di stances that are shorter than that along the
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categories that | earlier described across the
river and things like this.

MR OBREN Could I ask the answer be read
back?

THE WTNESS: Sure.

(Wher eupon, the record was read
by the reporter as requested.)
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q In the General Mtors' case do you recal
how at the time the deterninati on was made
materi al s and products were being conveyed between
facilities?

A The body of the car w thout the doors or
trunk and hood, | believe, the bodies of the car
were painted at one |ocation, put on a truck and
trucked to the other |ocation where they were
assenbl ed and nade into A dsnobil es.

There may have been other -- well, there
was, | think, another connection between those two
properties with respect to a railroad; but the
railroad was not a functioning activity in terns
of transporting at this particular tine.

Q Ckay. How did you first becone invol ved

in the source issue relating to Col or
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Communi cati ons?

A I"ma team | eader at our office. W have
eight or ten people dealing with permtting. W
nmeet each week and di scuss current probl emrs, new
policies and so on

At one of these neetings one of the

engi neers that is assigned to Illinois brought this

i ssue up and described it, and it was an idea
teaching situation to bring out a comon point.
So that's nmy first exposure to it

Q And what was your understandi ng at that
time about the nature of the relationship between
the facilities at Col or Comuni cati ons?

A Ckay. What was revealed to nme at that
time was that a map was drawn on a board show ng
two | ocations about a block apart, that a certain
printing or coating operation occurred at one
source, and then that product was transported to
anot her | ocation where it was generated into a
final product. At that particular point in tine
that's all | knew about this situation

Q Was there any aspect of that relationship
at Col or Communi cations that was simlar to the

i nter penancy (phonetic) at the General Mtors
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facility or as found to be existing in that CGenera
Mot ors' case?

MR OBREN If youwill, let ne object to the
formof that question especially related to the --
did you nmean any interdependency or independency?

MR, LAYMAN: |'msorry.

MR OBRIEN. | really didn't follow that.
Maybe you coul d rephrase it.

MR LAYMAN. Allow ne to rephrase the question,
if 1 may.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Ckay.

BY MR LAYMAN:

Q Was there any aspect of Col or
Comuni cati ons' business relationship that was
simlar to the General Mdtors' case in that Genera
Motors' facilities were operating as one or
i nt erdependent|y?

MR OBRIEN. | think | also have to object to
that question to the extent it's very leading in
that it assumes that the GMfacilities were acting
as one, so that's an objection to form

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:.  (bj ecti on

sust ai ned.

173
McCORKLE COURT REPORTI NG | NC
CH CAGO, ILLINOS - (312) 263-0052



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

NY MR LAYMAN:

Q Were there any common characteristics as
to the type of business relationship between Col or
Communi cations and that that was found to exist in
General Mdtors' case?

A Yes. There were sinilar relationships.

THE WTNESS: Let ne ask this. Can | pause
here and ask a question of you?

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  (Hearing O ficer
Edvenson nodded head up and down.)

THE WTNESS: GCkay. There are sone things that
| learned today that | nmay not have known back
t hen.

Can they cone into ny testinony, or do |
have to answer the question with respect just to
what | knew at the time?

MR LAYMAN: | would ask that the witness be
instructed to answer the question on the table, and
we can proceed fromthere and to --

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: | understood the
context of the question to be what he knew at a
certain tinme when he was | ooking at information --

MR LAYMAN: That's correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: -- that had a
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factual scenario simlar to the Color
Communi cati ons' scenari o.

So I would have to ask that you answer
this question with respect to what you were | ooking
at when you were looking at this factual scenario
in the past.

THE W TNESS: Ckay. Wien this probl em was
first brought to us, the problemwas first brought
to us and then | participated in providing guidance
and devel opnent of a new letter for M. Rothblast's
si gnat ur e.

The things that inpacted ne at that point
were the fact that in the General Mtors' case
there was a managenment of the product devel opnent
at one site that dictated how the final -- that was
coordinated with the devel opnent of the fina
pr oduct .

That is, the subproduct was devel oped in
such a manner that it fit into devel opnment of the
final product. That was inportant for us in
General Mdtors.

As the facts were presented to nme then
with respect to the time frame we're talking

about, | was inpacted by the fact that there was
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a subproduct that was bei ng devel oped that had
to have further actions upon it to make a fina
product .

So that seenmed to be the sane thing as
what was happening in General Mdtors with respect
to the relationship of the two activities at the
two sites.

Q Ckay. Wth respect to the relationship at
the Col or Comunications' facilities are there any
new facts that you have becone aware of since that
time that further support a determnation that was
made by USEPA previously?

A Yes, there are. | have cone to understand
that at General Mtors the quality of product that
was generated at one site was very crucial in terns
of the quality of the final product at Genera
Mot or s.

Basically the color of the paint on the
hood they felt that the custonmer wanted the col or
of the paint on the hood to match the col or of the
paint on the top of the car

I understand that the managenent of
quality in this particular case before us at the

initial activity is inportant for the final quality
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of the product, okay?

So | saw an interdependency in that aspect
of the source, okay? I'mrelating these two
activities.

Q Were you aware that | EPA subsequently
i ssued operating permts to Col or Conmunications
after the tinme in which you provided or Region 5
USEPA provi ded gui dance to the agency on the source
det erm nati on?

A Coul d you define operating permt for ne?
| know of two types of operating permts in
[Ilinois. One is what we call CAAPP. The other is
underneath their ol der operating pernmt program

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Can you clarify your
reference, M. Layman?

MR LAYMAN: Yeah
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q In this case it's the older state version
permts that were pending at that tine in 1994.
Were you aware that they were --

A Come to think of it, I'mnot aware of
ei ther.

Q Wre you nade aware after the gui dance

was provided to | EPA that | EPA went on to find the
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facilities to constitute one source as opposed to
two?

A Yes.

Q And have you since beconme aware that Col or
Conmuni cati ons subnmitted separate CAAPP permt
applications for each of its facilities there?

A That's correct. |'maware of that.

Q And you are also aware that |EPA
subsequently issued a notice of inconpleteness to
Col or Conmuni cations for that sane reason?

A That's correct.

Q Does USEPA believe that | EPA' s source
determ nation for purpose of CAAPP was consi st ent
with the earlier determnati on made respecting new
source revi ew?

A That's correct. W would consider this a
correct determination. W feel that the new source
revi ew policies, though established for new source
review, was in the mnd of Congress when they
formed Title 5 regulations or Title 5 legislation

W picked that up directly. | am aware of
that because | worked on the earlier regulation
devel opment .

It was a determ nation to pick up new
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source review, try to keep -- pick up the new
source review policy determ nations and regul ati ons
and try to keep our regs sinple.

So based on that | am of the opinion that
the EPA's determination that this is one source is
consistent with what Congress intended for Title 5.

Q Now, does this pronpbte any goals in terns
of uniformity for federal programrequirenments in
your Vi ew?

A As | indicated earlier, one of the prinmary
functions -- one of the functions that | have as a
federal enployee with oversight is to assure that
we have common inplenmenting of the Clean Ar Act,
and that was the reason why EPA sent this letter to
the State of Illinois is to nake sure that we were
implementing the Cean Air Act in this particular
case consistent with how we were inplenenting the
Clean Air Act nationally.

MR LAYMAN: | believe that's all we have for
Now.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Wiy don't we take a
five-mnute recess.

MR LAYMAN:  Ckay.

(Recess taken.)
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HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Then we wi || proceed
with the cross-exam nation of Respondent's second
Wi t ness.

MR. O BRIEN: Thank you.

CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR O BRI EN:

Q M. VanMersbergen, | just have a
clarification question about your resune which |
bel i eve was marked as Respondent's 3.

MR OBREN |Is that correct?

MR LAYMAN. (M. Layman nodded head up and
down.)

BY MR O BRI EN:

Q Under the title 1976 to 1994 designation
regi onal new source review expert, is that atitle
that was given to you by the USEPA?

A Yes, that's correct. It'sinny -- it's
in a position description for a position that |
applied to, soit's atitle.

Q What is your position that you held from
1976 to 1994 if other than the description of
regi onal new source review expert? Was there a
separate position title, in other words, is what

['mdriving at.
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A Ch, I'mnot sure what you're driving at;
but | could possibly answer your question, okay?
Underneath the civil service system
individuals are classified in terns of their
disciplines or their potentiality, and one could
be called an environnental specialist; and the
agency did that so that they could identify people
that may have -- well, so | was classified as an
envi ronment al specialist, okay, at that point in
time to come into the agency for as a position

Q That does answer ny question.

Did that position designation of
envi ronnment al speci alist change in 1995 when your
resume indicates that your description changed to
"national air permtting expert"?

A That's correct. A new job description
had to be prepared. It had to be conpleted --
conpeted for because it was a different GS | evel.

And so there was a new job description,
and that job description has the title the nationa
air permtting expert.

Q Now, you described what your position
entails and how it relates to the state prograns

that are going on.
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Is part of your job interpreting

i ndividual state regulations as they apply to air
pol I ution?

A I do not interpret state regul ations.
| determine -- | make interpretations of state
activities as to whether or not they are neeting
the federal requirenent for which the state
regul ati on was intended to prove to ne.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: M. VanMer sber gen?

THE WTNESS: Yes, nma'anf

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Per haps if you nove
your seat back further then the court reporter wll
be able to hear your answers better
BY MR- O BRI EN

Q Wuld it be fair to say, then, that one
of the things that you're looking for in terns of
| ooking at state applications or state activities
is consistency with the federal regulations and
consistency with the federal air pollution progranf

A There are two things that we may conment
on. That is one of the things that we would be
| ooki ng for.

Q What is the other thing you m ght coment

on?
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A The other thing we nmay conmment on is we
feel that the state would be our partners in air
pollution, so we would be willing to conment on
things that we felt would inprove program
operation, okay?

If I didn't think I would hurt Chris
Rorai ne's feelings, | would suggest, Chris, this
may be another way to | ook at this.

Q In your testinmony | think you referred
to the case where the instance of the 20-nile
separation between facilities as being one where
t he USEPA determ ned that those facilities would
not constitute separate sources. Are you famliar

with that instance?

A You said woul d not constitute separate --
Q I have that backwards. Let nme ask that
agai n.

You referred to in your testinony the
instance that M. Romaine had also referred to a
situation where facilities separated by 20 mles
woul d constitute separate sources under the USEPA' s
interpretation. Do you recall that?
A That's correct. | recall that | referred

to that.
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Q Now, you al so said that there are sone
cl oser distances which we are confortable with.
Can you tell me what you neant or explain to me
what you meant by that testinony?

A Certainly, I can. For exanple, the
General Mdtors' plant that was nearly a nile
okay?

And so, when sonebody woul d bring up an
occasion that would be less than a mile, we would
say, |look, we nmade a determination for a mle with
General Motors and we feel that you ought to be
doi ng the sane thing.

And we woul dn't feel necessary to go on
in and take a look at a lot of other details in
this particular situation. So sone of the other --
okay.

Q Are you famliar with any cases or
i nstances or decisions that have had to have been
made where the distance between the facility was
between 20 mles on the long end and the mle or
three-quarters of a mle that you were presented
with at General Mdtors?

A I heard M. Ronmine offer testinmony of two

sources, Acne Steel and -- at two different
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| ocations of ten mles, okay? | amaware of that.

Q Are there any other ones that you have
been asked to or the USEPA has been asked to either
advise or rule on that presented that situation
where the facilities were separated by between 20
mles on the high end and three-quarters to one
mle on the | ow end?

A Let ne qualify your question to your
advant age here.

Absent other factors we are now deal i ng
with a situation on an air force base where the
property is conpletely owned by EPA or conpletely
owned by the federal governnent, one ownership

And on some of these air force bases
we have activities that are separated by great
di stances, and we are wondering whether or not or
how t hese shoul d be grouped. So |I'm aware of the
agency | ooking at that activity, okay?

Q So those determ nations haven't been nade
yet, correct?

A They haven't -- there is no public
statement with respect to those determ nations.

Q I'"d like to ask you a coupl e questions

about the General Mdtors' instance that you tal ked
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about .

| believe you testified that those
facilities were -- let's see if we can get it
right.

Are they three-quarters of a mle apart
or amle apart? Do you renenber exactly how far
apart they are?

A | believe the letter suggests -- the
policy letter says 4500 feet, okay, recognizing
that 4500 feet is a rounding of sonething.

Q Now, were you involved in the decision
maki ng back in | believe it was 1981 when this
i ssue was presented to the USEPA?

A Yes. Excuse nme. Wiat date did you say it
was present ed?

Q | have 1981.

A Ckay, fine.

Q So you were at that time, | suppose
famliar with the facts of the case as they had
been presented to you by General Mdtors, correct?

A That's correct.

Q You stated that the reason for considering
these two facilities as a single source is because

of the long-line production in which the production
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at the facility was continued fromone plant to
another. Is that a fair summary of your testinony?

A That's what | said. That's correct.

Q And | believe you also testified that
there was a rail line that existed between the two
facilities; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Now, was it your testinony that the
railroad wasn't functioning at the time that this
determ nati on was made?

A No. That was not the intent. The intent
of what | was trying to say is that General Mdtors
was not using the rail activities to transport
partially conplete vehicles fromone area -- excuse
me, fromone |ocation to another

Though that may have been a possibility
on General Mdtors' part, they were not doing that.
They were transporting by road.

Q Were those GM plants both receiving raw
materials via the rail spur that was connecting the
two facilities?

A I'"'mnot aware of that happeni ng.

Q Let ne show you what has been narked as

Respondent's Exhibit 1, and we're | ooking at Vol une
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1 of the record in the case. | will showit to
you. This is Page 4.

Let me ask you first if you are famliar
with this menorandum dated June 8, 1981.

A Vell, I"mgenerally famliar with it. |
m ght not have every detail down pat.

Q Let ne just turn the page for you; and
the last |ine says, "Please contact Ronald J.
VanMer shergen for further information." That
refers to you, correct?

A That's me.

Q | don't suppose there are too many ot her
VanMer sber gens.

A Not Ronald Js.

Q Ckay. Let me direct your attention to the
| ast full paragraph on Page 4 of the record, and
the last sentence in that |ast paragraph starting
with "Wth the distance" and ask you to | ook at
t hat .

A Ckay.

Q Ckay? And you've read that sentence which
reads, "Wth the distance between the two plants
| ess than one mile and the plants being connected

by a railroad used only for GM we believe that the
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pl ants neet the requirenent of being adjacent and,
therefore, can be considered one source.” That's
what you just read, correct?

A That's correct.

Q Sois it fair to say that at least in
this meno one of the factors that was consi dered
in determning that the two GM plants can be
consi dered one source was the fact that there was
a railroad connection between the two plants that
woul d be used only for GW

A You added "used only for GM" and that's
not what | understood this to be.

Q Vell, let's take a | ook again at the
sentence. That's probably unfair of ne.

A Ckay. Al right, fine.

Q So, again, just for the record --

A Ckay. It --

Q Yeah. Let me put it again so we get it
right.

Is it fair to say that one of the factors
that went into the agency's determination that the
pl ants coul d be considered one source was that the
pl ants were connected by a railroad to be used only

for QW
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A That's correct.

Q In the case of the GM plants were both
pl ants cl assified under the sane SIC code?

A Yes, they were

Q I'"d like to ask you a coupl e questions
about the concept of support facility, and you
mentioned that one of the places that support
facility is discussed is in the new source review
wor kshop docunent which | believe was published
in 1990 by the agency; is that correct?

A Yes. It's referred to in that docunent,
certainly.

Q And, when you're describing support
facility, you testified that your understandi ng of
it or the common understanding of it was that if 50
percent or nore of a facility's output is sent to
another facility for further processing that those
two facilities -- the first facility would be
consi dered a support facility to the other. |Is
that an accurate statenent?

A That's correct.

Q Does that 50 percent cutoff, if you will,
appear anywhere in the USEPA' s Part 70 regul ati ons?

A Not in ternms of print. Concept is there,
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of course

Q And what's the source of the concept in
the regul ati on?

A The devel opnent of the Part 70 regul ations
uses the term"source,” and that term "source"” is
taken from Congress' placing it within the C ean
Air Act which Congress had understood what EPA was
nmeani ng when -- Congress understood what maj or
source meant when EPA defined or when EPA uses
"source."

And then the Cean Air Act definition of
"source" specifically refers to the source as
defined in 302 of the dean Air Act, and EPA has
published a policy in its preanble all that
materi al that hel ps define a source

So that definition of "source," then
the definition along with its neaning and
interpretation is carried on over into Part 70
in that manner.

Q You nentioned the Clean Air Act statute
itself in Part 302. Does the 50 percent cutoff
definition for a support facility appear in Part

302 in the Cean Air Act?

A No, it doesn't. And it wouldn't
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ordinarily because the 50 percent comes fromthe

support --
Q Well, but it was a yes or no question
A Sorry.

MR OBRIEN Bear with ne for a mnute.
BY MR O BRI EN:

Q | believe you also testified that when you
were | ooking at the question of whether facilities
wer e adj acent that distance was not the only factor
in making that determnation. |Is that a fair
summary of your testinmony?

A Coul d you state that again?

MR O BRI EN. Wy don't you read the question
back, and | may be able to state it better. |
really can't renenber at this point.

(Wher eupon, the record was read
by the reporter as requested.)

THE WTNESS: | think a nore accurate sumrary
woul d be that in determ ni ng whether we have a
maj or source -- we can tal k about what | said.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:. M. VanMer sbergen,
agai n, you just answer to the best of your
ability.

THE WTNESS: Yeah. That's close to what
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sai d.
BY MR O BRI EN:

Q What ot her factors does the agency use
in making the determ nation as to whether two
facilities are adjacent?

A Ckay. When we nake determ nations, we
are trying to determ ne whether or not pollution
emitting activities are a source.

The regs point us -- the regs use three
criteria that we use, and we do not try to separate
-- we do not like to use the regulations to
separate those three criteria when the intent is
to try to define "comon industrial grouping."

So there may be activity, there nay be
rel ati onshi ps, that are happening at the source
that in one case you nmay have two activities
separate exactly by -- you may have two separate
activities that are five mles apart -- excuse ne.

You may have two sources with activities
that are five mles apart, one source. One would
say these are to be included together because of
some of the other activities that occur, some of
the interdependent rel ationships.

The others that are only five mles --
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that are five nmles apart may not have the inter-
dependent activities, okay? So we |ook at other
activities.

So we use these three guidelines to try
to get at the main idea that the court was telling
us to do, and that is to get a conmon sense
definition of "source."

Q So, as | understand it, the three criteria
or certainly at least two criteria of same mgjor
i ndustrial grouping and contiguous and adj acent are
interrelated, they are not considered separately in
maki ng what you call a common sense determ nation
is that correct?

A Sonetimes there can be sone overlap in
t hose considerations.

Q And | think you testified that the
difference in two situations of facilities that
were in both instances separated by five mles
m ght be the nature of the rel ationship between
those two facilities --

A That is correct.

Q -- for making the determination as to
whet her they are treated as separate sources,

correct?
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A Whet her they are treated as conmon sense
i ndustrial groupings. GCkay, fine.

Q And, therefore, separate sources, correct?

A O the sane source, right.

Q That's right.

MR OBRIEN. That's all the questions | have.
Thanks.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Do you have
redirect?

MR LAYMAN: Ckay. Just a few questions, and
then | would like to confer with ny co-counsel

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  And if you will
speak up for the benefit of the persons in the back
of the room

MR LAYMAN:  Ckay.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q Does the fact that USEPA considered the
proposed rail line in the General Mtors' case of
1981 nean that USEPA's determi nati on woul d have
been sonething different had the proposed rail line
not been proposed?

A No.

Q Isn't it likely, therefore, that USEPA

195
McCORKLE COURT REPORTI NG | NC
CH CAGO, ILLINOS - (312) 263-0052



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

woul d have found the facilities at GMto be a

I ong-1ine operation even with trucking being the
only node of transport or conveyance between the
facilities?

MR OBREN. | have to object to the form of
that question as |eading and al so asking for
specul ati on.

MR LAYMAN: We're on redirect, and it's no
nore specul ative than half the questions that have
been posed today.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:.  Coul d you rephrase
your question so that it's no longer a
hypot heti cal ?

MR LAYMAN.  Yes, | can
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q How woul d you have characterized the
General Motors' case in terns of it fulfilling or
constituting a long-1ine operation had the facts
been only that trucking was the node of transport?

MR OBRIEN It's still a hypothetica
question, but --

MR LAYMAN: Yes. Did you bar nme from asking
it in hypothetical terns?

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Yes. | asked you
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that you not ask it as a hypotheti cal

MR. LAYMAN. Ckay. Allow ne to rephrase one
nore tine.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Pl ease.

BY MR LAYMAN:

Q Is it fair to say that in the Genera
Motors' case the fact that trucking was a
significant node of transport at that tinme nade
that a significant factor in the determ nation
that was made?

A Trucking was -- a significant factor is
that the product was brought fromone activity and
conpleted in another activity.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Was trucki ng
i nvol ved, M. VanMersbergen?

THE W TNESS: Trucking was involved in that
particular activity, okay?

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Thank you.

THE WTNESS: The rail line was an alternate
that coul d have been used if trucking was not,
but trucking was the activity that brought the
subproduct to the area where it was conpl eted
BY MR LAYMAN:

Q So the fact that you nade reference --
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USEPA made reference to the railroad spur was that
an additional factor that was nade note of by USEPA

inits determnation at that tinme?

A That's correct. Because there were other
determ nati ons where a property -- a real estate
det erm nati on had been nade via a rail line or a

pi pel i ne connection, and we felt that if we put in
the rail connections we woul dn't be chall enged as
much. So it was a factor related back to sone
other earlier determinations.

Q Does the fact that a long-1ine operation
may not have a railroad, a rail line or some
pipeline facility connecting them does that always,
if ever, rule out the possibility that they will be
consi dered adj acent or contiguous?

A Coul d you restate that question to ne?

Q Sure. Does the fact that a long-line
operation doesn't have a railroad or a pipeline
connecting the two does that fact alone rule out
the possibility that they won't be deened adj acent
or contiguous?

A No, it does not. It just does not.

Q Is it possible, then, in your viewthat

a long-line operation may not be characterized so
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much as addressing a point of common nexus as much
as it does maybe the nature of the relationship of
the business or the facility?

MR O BRIEN. Let ne object. Are you asking
for his opinion on what he neans to define a
| ong-1ine operation?

MR LAYMAN. Generally.

MR OBRIEN. Ckay. Wth that understanding |
will withdraw nmy objection.

THE WTNESS: A long-line operation where the
product is generated at one area and in some nmeans
transported to another area is the key to our
maki ng a determnation. Sonetinmes it's helpful to
support determ nations by putting in other factors.

BY MR LAYMAN:

Q By "putting in" you nean addressing other
factors?
A Addr essing other factors |ike pieces of

property that are touching.
Q Ckay.
MR LAYMAN. If | may confer just one nonent
wi th counsel .
(Pause.)

MR LAYMAN: | don't believe we have any
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further questions.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Ckay.

MR O BRI EN:

Can | ask one recross question?

| promise that will be it.

HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: That's fi ne.

Pl ease.

MR O BRI EN:

BY MR O
Q

question

with regard to the issue of the rai

facility,

For everyone's benefit.

RECRCSS EXAM NATI ON

BRI EN:

M. VanMer sber gen,

in response to a

M. Layman just asked you in his redirect

| think your testinony was that

i nstance a property or rea

had been

made. Do

that point?

A

that point. | nmade a reference to a rea

link at the GM

in that

estate determ nation

have your testinony clear on

I don't know whether you have it clear on

connecti on.

Q

estate

Maybe you coul d explain for ne just so

understand it what the reference was nade to the

real estate connection.

was t hat

Was t hat

referring

to the GM case,

or

referring to determ nations that the
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agency makes general ly?

A W referenced the rail connection in
this particular situation to support our
det erm nati ons.

There were several other factors that
didn't even go into this letter that were invol ved
in making this determnation; and we put into this
letter the fact that they were connected by a rai
to ward of f any other chall enges because the
factors that went into this determ nation dealt
with the administration within General Mtors of
how t hey managed the quality of a subproduct, that
is the paints that go in there, how t hey managed
the production at both plants to neet a fina
outcone. Those were the factors that we
consi dered; and we says, okay, fine, this acts as
one plant.

Q In that response |listen to another
question. Did General Mdttors request that these

two facilities be treated as one source back in

19817

A I cannot -- it may have been the state
that nade this request. |I'mnot totally clear on
this. | know the state of Mchigan --
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HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON: Made what request?

THE W TNESS: WMade the request for the
determnation -- the request for us to make the
determnation -- I'"'ma little hazy on that. | have
to be reminded of the situation

| know that at that particular -- the

reason | say | think it's the state is because at
that particular time we were trying to get the
states to relate to EPA so | wouldn't have to
relate to every industry on naking a
determination. So it may have conme fromthe
st at e.
BY MR- O BRI EN

Q Do you remenber or do you have any
know edge as to whether General Mtors objected
to the determination that had been nade by the
USEPA?

A No. General Mdtors lived with that
det erm nati on.

MR OBRIEN. That's all the questions | have.

EXAM NATI ON

BY HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON

Q Sir, | was just wondering if you could

speak to the real estate determ nation reference
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that you made

A Yes.

Q Why did you make that reference?

A We had nmade a -- okay, real estate.
People will accept without challenge if there are
two pieces of property that are touching each
ot her, okay? Touching each other, okay?

And in this particular case sonebody was
suggesting that -- well, here's arailroad that is
touching both pieces of property; and we said,
wel |, okay.

But General Mdtors is the only one using
that railroad, so it's just functioning for Genera
Motors; and we said, well, okay, that can be --

Q So it was with respect to the rail line

ref erence?

A Wth respect to the rail line.

Q Ckay.

A The arguments we were trying -- sone
argunments were raised to say these are -- there is

no question about the adjacency or contiguousy on
this, okay, because there is a rail |ine, okay?
Vell, okay, that's arail line; but it's

owned by sonmebody else, and so it's not much of an
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argunent .
Well, it's only used by General Mbdtors.
Wel |, okay, then the objection isn't quite
so severe if it's only used by General Mdtors.
It was an issue at that tinme, and we
addressed it.
HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  Ckay, thank you.
Al right. | believe that that concludes the
respondent's case-in-chief.
MR LAYMAN: Yes, it does.
HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON. Ckay. And we did
di scuss on one of our breaks an agreeable briefing
schedul e, and | understand that the parties wl|
forgo closing argunents at hearing and would |ike
to brief the case.
MR OBRIEN. That's correct.
MR LAYMAN: That's correct.
HEARI NG OFFI CER EDVENSON:  All right. The
agreed briefing schedule is as foll ows.
W will expect to receive the transcript
in the office of the board by April 23rd.
The petitioner's brief will be due on
May 8t h.

The respondent's brief will be due on
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May 15 with a request that a copy be provided to
petitioner on May 15th, and the petitioner's reply
brief will be due on May 20th.

The board's | ast decision date is June
20th as the deadline for decision is, | believe,
June 27th or 28th.

For the record, | have identified no
i ssues of witness credibility in this case; and
this concludes our hearing for today in the case
of Col or Comuni cations vs. |EPA, Case No. 96-125.

Thank you for your attendance and

cooperation in our process.

205
McCORKLE COURT REPORTI NG | NC
CH CAGO, ILLINOS - (312) 263-0052



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

STATE OF ILLINOS )
) SS:
COUNTY OF COOK )

KATHRYN L. PATTON, being first duly sworn,
on oath says that she is a court reporter doing
business in the Cty of Chicago; and that she
reported in shorthand the proceedi ngs of said
hearing, and that the foregoing is a true and
correct transcript of her shorthand notes so taken
as aforesaid, and contains the proceedi ngs given at

sai d heari ng.

Certified Shorthand Reporter

SUBSCRI BED AND SWORN TO
before ne this day

of 1996.

Notary Public
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